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o STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES
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Commissioner 603-2714501 1.800-852.3345 Ext. 4501
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Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.oh.gov

Director

September 1, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councll

State House ’

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

INFORMATIONAL ITEM

Action #1: Pursuant to RSA 4:45, RSA 21-P:43, and Section 4 of Executive Order 2020-04 as
extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, 2020-10, 2020-14, 2020-15, and
2020-16, Govemnor Sununu has authorized the Department of Health and Human Services,
Division of Public Health Services, to enter into Retroactive, Sole Source contracts with the
vendors listed below in an amount not to exceed $1,160,000 for conducting hospital-based
COVID-19 community testing and testing-related activities, with the option to renew for up to one
(1) additional year, effective retroactive to August 1, 2020, through December 1, 2020. 100%
Federal Funds.

_ Vendor Name ' Vendor Code | Contract Amount
Core Physicians, LLC VC177845 $290,000
Exeter, NH
Appledore Medical Group, Inc. TBD $580,000
Portsmouth, NH
Littleton Hospital Association d/b/a Littleton Regional |VC177162 $145,000
Healthcare '

Littleton, NH
The Memortal Hospital at North Conway . TBD $145,000
North Conway, NH ,

$1,160,000

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified. :

05-095-090-903010-19010000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN '
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION, BUREAU OF LABORATORY SERVICES,
ELC CARES COVID-19

State ' Class /
Fiscal Year Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80183518 1,160,000
Total . $1,160,000

The Depariment of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cilizens to achieve health and independence.
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Action #2: Pursuant to RSA 4:45, RSA 21-P:43, and Section 4 of Executive Order 2020-04 as
extended by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, 2020-09, 2020-10, 2020-14, 2020-15, and
2020-16, Governor Sununu has authorized the Department of Health and Human Services,
Division of Public Health Services, to enter into a Retroactive Sole Source amendment to an
existing contract with Catholic Medical Center (VC# TBD), Manchester, NH for conducting
hospital-based COVID-19 community testing and testing-related activities, with no change to the
price limitation of $290,000 and no change to the contract completion date of December 1, 2020,
effective retroactive to August 1, 2020. 100% Federa! Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor on July 31, 2020, and was presented
to the Executive Council on August 26, 2020 (Informational ltem #0).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified. -

05-095-090-803010-18010000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION, BUREAU OF LABORATORY SERVICES,
ELC CARES COVID-19 g

State " Class/ | - -
Fiscal Year Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 80183518 $290,000
Total $290,000
EXPLANATION

Action #1: This item is Sole Source and Retroactive because the Department, in the interest
of the public's health and safety, identified hospitals with catchment areas throughout New
Hampshire and capacity to immediately begin conducting community COVID-19 testing and
testing-related activities. The Contractors are therefore uniquely qualified to provide COVID-19
testing to individuals who reside within each hospital's catchment area or local community.

Action #2: This item is Sole Source because the original contract was scle source and MOP
150 requires subsequent amendments to be identified as sole source. This amendment is
Retroactive because the Department needed to make a minor modification to the existing scope
of service effective back to August 1, 2020, which is the date the Contractor began providing
services.

The Contractors are conducting COVID-19 specimen collection and testing for individuals
who reside within each hospital's catchment area or local community, regardiess of the
individuals’ prior affiliations with the hospital. The Contractors test both individuals who have
symptoms of COVID-19 or who are pre-symptomatic or asymptomatic at the request of the
individuals o be tested or the Department. Contractors also utilize various communicaticn
methods, including the hospitals' websites, newsletters, and social media platforms, to inform the
local community members how and when they can access the services and the location of the
specimen collection sites.

The exact number of residents of the State of New Hampshire served from August 1, 2020,
to December 1, 2020, will depend on the trajectory of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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The Department will monitor contracted services by requiring each Contractor to report:

Number of persons who received COVID-18 testing.

Number of persons assisted with enrofiment in the Medicaid COVID-19 Testing
benefit or other assistance program who received COVID-19 testing.

Number of persons for whom race and/or ethnicity is documented.
Allowable expenses incurred during the duration of the contract.

As referenced in Exhibit A Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, Section 1,
Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 3.3 of the attached
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to one (1) additional year,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
appropriate State approval.

Areas served: Statewide
Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds. CFDA #93.323, FAIN #NUS0CK000522

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

vy m
Lorl A. Shibinette
Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject:_Ilospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing (85-2021-DPHS-04-HOSPI-06)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governorend
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprictary must
be clearty identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Statc Agency Name
New Harpshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Statz Agency Address

129 Pleasam Screet
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Core Physicians, LLC |

1.4 Contractor Address

7 Holland Way
Exeter, NH 03833

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number

Number
05-095-090-903010-

(603) 580-6537 19010000

i.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

December 1, 2020 $290,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signat

L&b\l- I\—- | Date: 7/ 420

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Delom L st | QUE dent” Cg.woﬂf.

1.13 Stte Agency Signaturce

Date: August 3, 2020

1.14 Neme and Title of State Agency Signatory

Lisa Morris, Director - NH Di\}ision of Public Health Services

By

ERE Apptoval by the NH. Dépnrtmcnl of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attamey General (Form, Substance and Bxecution) (if applicable)

By, (Catherine Pino
g Friros 08/03/20
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the ageacy identified in block 1.1
(“State™), engeges contrector idenlified in  block 1.3
(“Contractor”) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrecment to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties bereunder, shall
become effcclive on the date the Governor end Exccutive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in bleck 1.17,
unless po such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agrecment is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date ghall be performed at the sole rigk of the
Contractor, and in the cvenl that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no lisbility to the Contractor,
inctuding without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any cosus incurred or Services performed
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hermunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federel legislative or executive

,action that reduces, climinates or otherwise modifics the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreemént and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no cvent shall the State be liable for any payments
bercunder tn excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
cvent of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become availsble, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
termingte the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or teymination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any ofher
nccount of source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unsvailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particulerly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incotporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complcte reimbursement to the Coniractor for ell
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only end the complete
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compensation to the Contrector for the Services. The Statc shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Stete reserves the right to offset from any amounts
othcrwisc payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounis required or permitted by N.H. RSA §0:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law,

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
cvent shall the 1otal of all peyments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all appliceble statutes, laws,
regulations, end orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contrector, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in eny part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations end guidelines as the
State or the United States issu¢ to implement these regulations.
The Contructor shall also comply with ail applicable inteflectual
property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contraotor shall not
discriminatc against employees or applicents for cmployment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
oricotation, vr matipnal origin and will t2ke affirmative action to
prevent guch discrimination.

6.3. The Contractar agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with 21l rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms 2od cenditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall et its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Scrvices, end shalt be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

72 Unless otherwise autharized in writing, during the werm of
this Agrecment, and for » period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shal] not hire, and
shall not permit eny subcontrsctor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in 0 combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agresment.  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specificd in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event of any
dispute concemning the interpretation of this Agreemenl, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials _OL("__
Date _1[_9_ 120




8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following ects or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hercunder (“Event
of Defaul™):

8.1.1 failere to perform the Services aatisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
£.1.3 frilure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agrecment.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or pll, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defuult and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
& greater or besser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Defmult is not timely cured,
termoinate this Agreement, effective two (2) days sfter giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defeult and suspending all payrients to be made under this
Agreememt and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwisc accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
ghall never be paid o the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor 2 written notice specifying the Event of
Default end set off egainst eny other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any dameges the State suffers by reason of
eny Event of Defauit; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a writien notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminste the
Agreement and pursuc any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No fuilure by the State to enfarce any provicions hercof efter
eny Event of Defanlt shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or eny subscquent Event of
Default. No express failure 1o enforce any Event of Default shall
be deened & weiver of the right of the State to enforce cach and
ell of the provisions bereof upon eny further or other Bvent of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

3. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstending paragraph B8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is cxercising its option to terminate the Agrecment.

9.2 In the cvent of an early termination of this Agreement for
apy reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at he State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifieen (15) days afier the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Repon™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of terminstion. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXCHIBIT B. In addition, at the State’s discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of noticc of carly termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement. .

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION. -

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shalt mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studics, roports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, enalyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, aotes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documnents, all whether
Bnisbed or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purposs
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be retwmed (o the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any repson,

10.3 Confidentiality of data shell be governed by N.H. RSA
chepter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosurc of data requires
prior written approval of the State,

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor ucr any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive eny benefits, workers’ compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor ghall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in thig Agreement without the prior written notdce, which
shall be provided to the Statz at least fifieen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a writtcn conscnt of the State, For purposcs
of this paragraph, & Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control”™ means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or serics of related transactions in
which e third panty, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or comabined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of ali or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcountrocted by the
Contractor without prior writico notice and consent! of the State.
The State is entitled 1o copies of all subcontracts and assignment
egrecments and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement te which it is not a

party.

13, INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exampted by law,
the Comtractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employces, from and egainst any and all clsims,
liabilitics and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infrmgement, or other claims asseried againsi
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which-
may be claimed to erise oul of) the acts or omission of the

Contractor Initials
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Countractor, of subcontrectors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute 8 waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved 10 the
State, This covenant in paragraph 13 shall movive the
. termination of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continnously maintain in force, and shall require eny
subcontractar or assignee to obtain and maintzin in force, the
following insurance:

14.].1 commercial general lisbilily insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregats
or cxcess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagmph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement vatue of the property.

14.2 The policics described in subperagreph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insiurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14,3 The Contractor shall faunish to the Contrecting Officer
idcatified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, & certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required vnder this Agreement
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurence policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any

renewals thereof shall be attached and ere incorporated herein by |

reference.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION,

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifics
and warrants that the Contractor is in corapliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers'
Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contrector is subject to the requirements
of NH. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall meaintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
paymenmt of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contrector shall furmish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any appliceble renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Warkers'
Compensation premiums or for mny other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might ariso under epplicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in  connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement,
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16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto 10 the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepzid, in 8 United States
Post Office addressed to the parties ot the eddresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived

or discherged only by en instrument in writing signed by the -
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,

waiver or discharge by the Governor end Executive Council of

the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required

under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the partics and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording nsed in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their omtual intent, and no rule
of construction sha{] be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions erising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thercof

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of & conflict
between the terms of this P-17 form (as modified m EXHIBIT
A} and/or attachments and emendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 {as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The partics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit,

21, HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contaiued therein
shall in no way be beld to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meening of the provisions of this
Agreement,

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or madifying
provisions sct forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
berein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement erc beld by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to eny state or federal law, the remmining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in 8 number of counterparts, cach of which shali be
dcemed en original, constitutex the cntirc egreement and
understanding between the partics, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
bereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-18 Community Testing
EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Sﬁbparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Govemor of the State of New Hampshire,
issued under the Executive Order 2020-04 and any extensions thereof,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the partles hereunder, shall
bacome effective on August 1, 2020. (the “Effective Date").

1.2, Paragraph 3, Effective Date.lCompIetlon of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to one (1) additional year
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and required
govemmental approval.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Subparagraph 12.2, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts is
amended to indude the following additional language:

The State acknowledges receipt of written notice from Contractor of its intention
to subcontract some of the services to Exater Hospital Inc., (the “Hospital®) and
the State hereby consents to Contractor subcontracting some of lts services to
the Hospital In accordance with the contractual conditions of the Agreement

1.4. Persgraph 12, Subparagraph 12.3, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is
amended as follows:

12.3. Subconfractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be perfformed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basls and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any Inadequate subcontractor performance.

1.5. Peragraph 14, Subparagraph 14.1.1 Insurance, is amended as follows:

14.1.1 Commercial general llabllity Insurance against all claims of bodily
injury, death or property damage, in the amounts of not less than
$2,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 aggregate or excess.

Core Pryliians, LLC Exhbe A Contrackor Inkisls | l E(’
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospllal-Basod COVID-19 Community Testing
EXHIBIT A

1.6 Paragraph 14, Subparagraph 14.2 insurance, is amended as follows:

14.2 The Insurance coverages described herein may be provided pursuant
to Exeter Health Resources’ selfHnsurance trust.

Core Physiciane, LLC Exhibh A c«:mmamL
83-2021-DPHS-04-HOSPHO8 Pege 2012 MW



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

s

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

For the purposes of this agreement, any references to days shall mean
calendar days.

The Contractor shall conduct specimen collection and testing for SARS-CoV-2
for symptomatic patients who are established patients of the Contractor
(*affiliated patients”) beginning August 1, 2020.

The Contractor shall begin specimen collection and testing services for
unaffiliated patients no later than August 17, 2020, including, but not limited to,

the following:

1.3.1. Conducting specimen collection and testing for SARS-CoV-2 in an
outpatient setting for individuals who reside within the Contractor’s
catchment area or local community, regardless of such individuals’
prior affillations with the Contractor.

1.3.2. Conducting specimen collection and testing for patients who have
symptoms of COVID-19 or who are pre-symptomatic or asymptomatic
at the reguest of: \

1.3.2.1. The Individual to be tested; or

1.3.22. The Department of Health and Human Services
(Department) Division of Public Health Services (DPHS).

The Contractor shalt conduct gspecimen collection and testing for SARS-CoV-2
in an oulpatient setting for individuals who reside within the Contractor's
catchment area or'local community, regardless of individuals® prior affillations
with the Contractor.

The Contractor shall conduct specimen collection and testing for patients who
have symptoms of COVID-18 or who are pre-symptomatic or asymptomatic at
the request of:

1.56.1. The individual to be tested; or

1.5.2. The Department of Health and Human Services (Department) Division
of Public Health Services (DPHS).

The Contractor shall not require a valid order for testing or an office or
telemedicine visit for pre-symptomatic or asymptomatic patients in order for
patients to recelve COVID-19 testing.

In the event of a significant increase In community transmission of COVID-18
beyond that present as of the Effective Date, the Contractor shall not be
responsible for meeting significantly increased levels of testing and may
request the Department to provide additional testing capacity.

Core Physitians, LLC Exhibit B Contractor inltials
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EXHIBIT B

1.8.

1.8.

1.10.

1.11.

1.12.

1.13.

1.14,
1.15.
1.16.

1.17.

1.18.

The Contractor shall determine the appropriate venue and physicat location for

specimen collection, which may include, but is not limited to:
1.8.1. An existing physical location.

1.8.2. A temporary drive-through location.

1.8.3. A drive-up faciiity.

The Contractor shall request a waiver, if necessary, from the Department's
Bureau of Health Facilities Administration for a temporary drive-through
location or drive-up facility.

The Contractor shall determine the appropriate number of days per week and
the duration of ime per day to perform community specimen collection for
COVID-19 testing to meet the needs of the hospital catchment area and local
community and communicate the hours of operation to the Department.

The Contractor shall ensure the collection, handling, processing and testing of
specimens comply with guidelines Issued by the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC), avallable at https:/www.cdc.gov/coronayirus/2018-

CoV1abiguideli ' | and by the laboratory used for
procassing specimens.

The Contractor shall ensure patients sign an appropriate consent form, prior to
collection of specimans, authorizing testing at the laboratory and reporting to
the ordering medical provider (if any}, the Department, and any other individual
or entity designated to receive the test results.

The Contracior shall identify any communication access needs to ensure
needed language assistance Is provided, which may include, but is not limited
to:

1.13.1. Over-the-phone Interpretation of spoken languages.

1.13.2. Video remote interpretation to access American Sign Language.

The Contractor shall ensure communication and language assistance Is
provided to individuals, as appropriate and needed, to ensure the validity of any
signed consent by utilizing translated consent forms and/or interpreters.

The Contractor shall ensure all personnel collecting, handling, processing and
transporting specimens are trained to safeguard the confidentiality of the
patient and protected health information (PHI), as defined in the Health
Information Portabllity and Accountability Act (HIPAA).

The Contractor shall ensure the secure and confideniial transporting of
specimens to the laboratory.

If applicable, the Contractor shall ensure the ordering provider for each COVID-
19 test is a licensed medical provider.

The Contractor shall ensure the following:

Core Phyricians, 11 C Exhibii 8 Contractor Inttels
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1.18.1. Patients with positive results confirming the diagnosis of COVID-19 are
informed:

1.18.1.1. By telephone or other electronic method.

1.18.1.2. By firstclass U.S. mall, If telephone or cther electronic
method is unsuccessiul

1.18.2. Patients with negative results are informed of test results in a method
determined by the Contractor.

1.18. The Contractor shall utiize existing communication methods to inform the Io&al
community of the avallability of outpatient COVID-19 testing, which may
include, but are not imited to:

1.18.1. The Contactor's website.
1.19.2. Confractor newsletters,
1.18.3. Social media platforms.

1.20. The Contractor shall ensure published information includes how and when
patients can access the services and the location of the specimen collection

site.

1.21. The Contractor shall ensure any marketing materials abide by existing
requirements for communication access, including but not limited to:

1.21.1. Vital and significant materials should be made available in additional
languages, as approprate, and must be translated by qualified,
competent translation providers, as follows:

1.21.1.1. Statewide, only Spanish meets the criteria for translation.

1.21.1.2. Translation is required for languages depending on
factors including the number and proportion of Limited
English Proficlency (LEP) persons served or likely to seek
services in the Contracfor's service areas, and the
frequency with which LEP individuals comse Into contact
with the Contractor's programs, activities and services. .

1.21.1.3. Notification on all materials of the availability of free
communication access and language assistance for any
individuals who may require it. '

1.21.1.4. All materials have a phone number to call for further
information, ensuring staff answering that phone number
shall have access to over-the-phone Interpretation to
asslist callers who need spokeh language Interpretation.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide communication and language assistance at all
points of contact In accessing COVID-19 f{esting to individuals with
communication access needs, including Individuals with limited English

Core Physiclans, LLC © ExhibHB Contractor Initiais D
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

1.23.

1.24,

1.25.

1.26.

proficiency, or individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss.

The Contractor shall conduct outreach to vuinerable populations and minority
populations In the hospital catchment area or local communlty, including
notifying partner organizations who work with these populations about the
availability of COVID-19 testing.

The Contractor shall report both positive and negative test results to the
Division of Public Health Services through the Electronic Laboratory Reporting
(ELR) system, or ensure the laboratory used for processing specimens and
conducting testing reports both positive and negative resuits to the Division of
Public Health Services through the ELR system.

The Contractor shall report all positive cases of COVID-18 with complete case
information by fax to (603) 271-0545 to the Division of Public Health Services
usmg the New Hampshlre Confi dentlal COVID-19 Case Repon Form available

The Contractor shall nohfy paﬁents who are uninsured or do not have full
coverage benefits for COVID-19 testing that New Hampshire Medicaid has
established a COVID-18 Testing Benefit that may pay for testing and diagnosis
of COVID-19 for persons who are not already a Medicaid beneficlary and do
not have full coverage for COVID-19 testing and diagnosis. The Contractor
shall assist patients In completing the application available at

https://nheasgy.nh.gov.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

- 21,

22

The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through H and Exhibits J
through K, which are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

The Contractor's Use and Responsibilities for Confidential Information are as
follows. .

2.2.1. The Contractor agrees to use, disclose, maintain, or transmit
Confidential Data from Providers as required, speclfically authorized, or
pemmitted under the Contract or this Agreement. Further, the Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and

" agents, agrees not to use, discloss, maintain, or transmit PH| in any
manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy end Security
Rules. The Contractor shall provide Confidential Information as required

.by the Contract, RSA 141-C:7, 141-C:9, RSA 141-C:10, and In a form
required by He-P 301.03 and the “New Hampshire Local Implementation
Gulde for Electronic Laboratory Reporting for Communicable Disease
and Lead Test Results Using HL7 2.5.1,” Verslon 4.0 (5/23/2016), found

at: hitps://www.dhhs.nh gov/dphs/bphsi/documents/elrguide. pdf.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall transmit Confidential Information to the Division of
Public Health Services by means of a secure file transport protocol

Coro Phyeicians, LLC Exhibit 8 Contractor Iritats QL&
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EXHIBIT B

2.3.

2.4,

25.

2.6.

(sFTP) provided by the Department and agreed to by the parties and
approved by the Department’s information Security Officer.

2.2.3. The Contractor shail transmit the Confidential Information to the Division
of Public Health Services as required by statute and this Agreement,
namely:
2.2.3.1. All test results, including but not limited to positive and negative

results, shall be reported electronically via slectronic laboratory
reporting procedures, also referred to as "ELR,” as noted
above.

2.2.3.2. Test results shall be provided within 24 hours of the test results
being received by the Contractor.

As nacessary, the Contractor agrees to comply with any request to correct or
complete the data once transmitted to the Division of Public Health Services.

The Contractor agrees that the data submitted shall be the "minimum
necessary” to carry out the stated use of the data, as defined in the HIPAA
Privacy Rule and in accordance with all applicable confidentiality laws.

The parties agree that this Agreement shall be construed in accordance the
terms of Contract and governed by the laws of the State of New Hampshire.

The Contractor and the Department agree to negotiate an amendment to
this Agreement as needed to address a contract amendment, or any
changes in policy issues, fiscal issues, information security, and other
specific safeguards required for maintaining confidentiality of the data.

3. Reporting Requirements

31

3.2

The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Depariment showlng. that
the public Is able to access COVID-19 testing, including, but not limited to:

3.1.1. Number of persons who received COVID-19 testing.

3.1.2. Number of persons assisted with enroliment in the Medicaid COVID-18
Testing benefit or other assistance progrem who recelved COVID-18
testing.

3.1.3. Number of persons for whom race and/or ethnicity is documented.

The Confractor shall ensure race and/or ethnicity demographic identifiers for
the parsons who received COVID-19 testing are collected consistently and
comrectly, in accordance with best practice standards and processes as
provided by the Office of Heath Equlty, and entered either manually or
electronically on the hospltal or reference laboratory COVID-18 test requisition

forms.

4. Additional Terms

41.

Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Leglslative Changes

Cors Physiclans, LLC Exhibit B Contractor Inttals JfiC
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EXHIBIT B

411,

The Contractor agreas that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achleve
compliance therewith. If Contractor does not agree with the State's
propased or actual modifications to this Agreemaent, Contractor may
terminate this Agreement with thirty (30) days written notice.

4.2. Federal Chvil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

4.2.1.

The Contractor shall submit within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, and comply with, a detalled description of the
communication access end language assistance services they will
provide to ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or
services to persons with limited English proficiency, people who are
deaf or have hearing loss, are blind or have low vision, or who have
speech challenges.

4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1.

432.

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the foliowing statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document efc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Humean Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding scurces as were available or
required, 8.9, the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.”

All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

4.4, Operation of Facllities: Compllance with Laws and Regulations

44.1.

Core Physicians, LLC

In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authoritles and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facllity. if any governmenta)
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the sald facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
sald license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
feregolng requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees

Exhibit B Contraﬁorlrﬁﬂalst&
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that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with ail
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5. Records
5.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and cther electronic or physical data
evidencing and refiecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all iIncome received
or collected by the Contractor.

5.1.2. All records must be maintalned In accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
. costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without [imitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by

the Department.

5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each reciplent of
services, which records shall Iinclude all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibllity for each

. such reciplent), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
servicas.

5.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

5.2. During the tarm of this Contract and the peried for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reporis and
records maintalned pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Departmeni of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the cbligations of the parties
hereundsr (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are fo be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Departmant shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retaln the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

B

Core Physiclans, LLC Exhibit B Contracior tnitials IZ&
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EXHIBIT C

Pa [:]

1. This Agreement Is funded by the Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for
Prevention and Control of Emerging Infectious Diseases (ELC) cooperstive
agreement from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Division of
Prepardness and Emerging Infections, CFDA #93.323, FAIN #NUS0CK000522.

2. Forthe purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, In
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Depariment has Identifled this Contract as NON-R&D, In
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. This Agreement Is for COVID-19 testing and testingrelated activities to be
conducted between August 1, 2020 and December 1, 2020.

4. Payment:
41. The Depariment will pay the Contractor the amount listed in box 1.8
Price Limitation included In the General Provislons Form Number P-37,

for providing the services included in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, after
the Effective Date of the Contract.

4.1.1. The Contractor shall submit an expense report in a form
satisfactory to the State every sixty (60) days, which identifies
allowable expensss incurred during the duration of the contract.

4.1.2. Any unspent start-up payment funds will be returmed to the
' Department within sixty (60) calendar days of contract
explration date.

4.1.3. Inlieu of hard copies, ali expense reports may be assigned an
electronic  signature and must . be emalled to
dphscontractbilling@dhhs.nh.gov.

5. The Contractor must provide the services In Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

6. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be recouped, in
whole or In part In the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

7. The Contractor shall keep detalled records of thelr activities related to
Department-funded programs and services and have records avallable for
Department review, as requested.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herain, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be recouped, In whole or in part, in the event

Core Physicians, LLC ' Exhibit € Contractor m.m
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' EXHIBIT C

of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed In accordance with the terms and condltions of this
agresment, ' ' :

9. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price Hmitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Councll, f needed and
ustified.

10. Audits

10.1. The Contractor Is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

10.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

10.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

10.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor Is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit en annua! financial audit.

10.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual! single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

10.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal year.

10.4. In addition to, and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall retum to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Core Physiciana, LLC Exhiblt C Contractor Inftiats
" 83-2021,0PHS-4-HOSPI-06 Page 2 of 2 Dats __%(/

Rov.$1/0819 .




Now Hampshire Department of Health and Humen 8ervices
Exhiblt D

o) G G | IREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agress to comply with the provisians of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Dnup-Fres Workplace Act of 1888 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.8.C. 701 et 58q.), and further agress to have the Contracior's representstive, as identiflad in Secions
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions executs the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT.OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1888 (Pub. L. 100-690, Thle V, Subtitie D; 41 U.5.C. 701 et seq.). The Jenuary 31,
1989 regulations were amended end published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Reglster (pages
21681-21691), and require ceriification by grantees {(and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to sward, that they will matntain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regutation provides that a grantes (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) thet is & State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federa| fiscal year in lleu of certificates for
each grant during the feders! fiscal year covered by the cerfification. The certificate gat out below is a
material representation of fact upon which rellence is ptaced when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall ba grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemmant wide suspension of debarment. Contractors using thia farm should
send it to:

Commissloner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantes certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notilylng employees that the unlawful manufecture, distribution,
dispensing, possessicn or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee’s
warkplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing en ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1. Tha dangers of dneg abuse in the workplace,;

1.22. The grentes’s policy of malntaining & drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any avallable drug counseling, rehshiiltation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties thet may bs Imposed upon employses for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplacs;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by peragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the smpioyes In tha statement required by paragraph (a) that, s & condition of
employment under the grant, the empioyse will
1.4.1. Abide by the tarms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or har conviction for & violation of a criminal drug

p stetuts occuming In the workplace no later than five calender days after such

conviction;

1.5. Nectifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after recelving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an empioyee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employere of convicted employees must provide notice, Induding position fitle, to every grant

_officer on whase grant activity the convicted smployee was working, unless the Federal agency

IR Exhibit D ~ Certification reganding Drug Frea Vandor inftialy
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has designated a central point for the recelpt of such notices. Notice chall mclude the
identification number(s) of each effected grant;

1.68. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calandar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicled
1.6.1. Teking eppropriate personnel action egainst such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requiremants of the Rehabliitation Act of 1973, as

' amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participats satisfectorly In & drug abuse asslstaﬂoe or

rehabllitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,

law enforcament, or other appropriate agency,
1.7. Maklngagoodfalﬂ\oﬂoﬂtoeonﬂnuetoma!mamadmg-mmkpbcemmugh
implementation of paregraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.8.

2. The grantee may Insert In the space provided below the slte(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the speclfic grant.

Place of Performance (street address, clty, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O i there ars workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: Cﬁ& 91\3530&:2@‘ yd
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E C DING LO

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generel Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 318 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identiffed In Sections 1.11
end 1.12 of the General Provisions executs the following Caertification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covared):.
Temporary Assistance to Neady Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Soclal Services Block Grant Program under Titte XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Biock Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and bellef, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been pald or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing cor ettempting to influsnce an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employes of Congress, or an employes of & Member of Congress in
connecton with the awardlng of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federa! contract, grant, loan, or cooperative egreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantes or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other'than Federalapproprisied funds have been peld or will be pald to any person for
influencing or attempting to Influsnce en officer or employee of any agency, 8 Member of Congress,
en officer or employee of Congress, of an sniployse of a Member of Congress In connaction with this

- Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperetive egreement {and by specific mention sub-grantas or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complets and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, atteched and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall requirs that the language of this certification be Included In the award
document for sub-awards &t all tiers (Including subcontrects, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, end cooperative agraements} and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This cartification |s & material representation of fact upon which rellance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for maeking or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.8. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
cartification shell be subjoct to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such faflure.

Vendor Neme: (¢ 9"‘1 SIqu L

llﬁt}‘mm
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provislons agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Offica of tha President, Executive Order 12548 and 45 CFR Part 78 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Rasponsibility Matters, and further zgress to have the Contractor's
representalive, as identfied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following

Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION -
1. By signing and submitting this propasal (contract), the prospective primary participamt is providing the
certification set out balow. ‘

2. The nabliity of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denlal
of parlicipstion in this coverad fransaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why & cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to etiter Into this transaction. However, fallure of the prospective primary
participani to fumish a certification or an expianation shall dlsquallfy such person from participation in
this tranaaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a matertal represantation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determinad to enter into this transaction. If itis later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erronecus cestificetion, In addition to other remedies
availabls to the Federal Govemment, DHHS may terminate this trensaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant ehall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom thls proposal (contract) is submitted if at any ime the prospective primary participant leama
that its certification was emoneous when submitted or has become arroneous by reason of changed
creumstances.

6. The terma “covered transaction,” "debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” "lower tler covered
transaction,” "participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” "principal,” *proposal,” and
*voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverege sections of the rules implamenting Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting thls proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tlier covered
transaction with a person who s debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or volunterily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The praspeciive primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled *Certification Regmﬂ!ng Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibllity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, In all lower tler coverad
transactions and in gll solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8, A participant in a coveraed trangaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tler covered trareaction that itis not deberred, suspended, Ineligibte, or Involurtarily extiuded
from the covered fransaction, unless If knows that the certification is erronecus. A participant may
decide the methed and fraguancy by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but Is nol requiret to, chaEk the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require estabiishment of a system of records
In order to render in good faith the.certification required by this clause. The knowledge and -

ExhibR F - Cerfficstion Regarding Debarment, Suspension Vandor Inltials QQ -
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information of a participant Is not required to excead that which Is normally possessed by a prudent
perscn in the ordinary course of business dealings,

10. Except for ransactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, If @ parlicipant in &
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voiuntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, In
addition to other remedies avellabia to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defauit.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary patticipant cestifies to the best of is knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals: )

11.1. are not presently debamred, suspended, proposed for dasbarmert, declared ineligible, or

_voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federe! department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-yeer period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil jJudgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offansa in
connection with obtaining, ettempting to obtaln, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or 8 contract under e public transaction; violation of Fedsral or State entitrust
statutes or commiseion of embezzisment, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making falas statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entlty
(Federa!, Stata or locaf) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this applicaticn/proposal hed ane or mare public
transactions (Federal, State or local) termineted for cause or defautt.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statsments in this
certification, such prospactive participant shall aftach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

" LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participanl, as
defined In 45 CFR Part 76, cerlifies to the best of its knowiedge and belief that It and its princlpals:
13.1. are not presently debarmed, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared neiigible, or

volunterily exciuded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lowsr tiar participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debamment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tler covered
trensactions and In ail soficltations for lowar tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name: (‘ﬁu PYL»‘SJW] bbc"
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor |dentifiad (n Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identifiad in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrentees or subcontractors to comply, with any appliicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnhbus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.5.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employmenl practices orin
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, end sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal-Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juyenila Jqpbm Dejinqueicy E'revemlon Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, thé civil nights’ obiigatbns df the: Safe Streets Act. Reciplents of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from'discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal

Employment Opportunity Plan requirements . ot

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964§ ;;: sC. S'qctlonZODOd which prohibis recipients of foaerarﬁnahclan
assistance from discriminatin| he basis of rqca color, or netional origin in any program or adivity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1873 (29 0:S7C.Section 794}, which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard io employment and the delivery of

services or bensfits, in any program or activity,

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1890 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunily for persons with disabilities in employment, State and loca!
government services, public eccommodations, commarcia! facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1872 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1885-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs,

- the Age Discﬂm!naﬁon Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimmnation on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. it does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 CF.R. pt. 31 {U.5. Depertment of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nandiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 {equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and pohr:y-making
criteria for partnerships with fath-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 CF.R. pt. 38 (U.5. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.5.C. §4712 and The Nationa! Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fisca! Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-238, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The cerificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspansion or termination of grents, or government wide suspension ar

debarment.
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in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after.a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, netional crigin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting egency or division within the Department of Health and Human Searvices, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudaman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Ganeral Provisions agraes by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified n Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor egrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name Cmg p"\‘{s" U= e
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE -

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacoo Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1604
{Act), requires that smaking not be permiited in any pertion of any indoor fadllty owned or leesed or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regulardy for the provision of health, day care, education,
or ibrary services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs elther
diractty or through State or local govemments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facllities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portlons of facllitles used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Fallure
to comply with the provisians of the isw may resuit in the Imposition of a ¢civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day end/or the imposition of an administrative compilance order on the respanslble entity.

The Vendor identlfiad in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of tha Contractor's
representative as identifiad In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provislons, to exacuta the following

certification;

1. By signing end submitting this contract, the Vandor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applc_eble provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known ss the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

vendar Neme:( JR.€ Plut & bas
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'HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCQUNTABILITY
ACT (HIPAA) BUSINESS ASSQCIATE AGREEMENT
Exhibit I is not applicable to this Agreement.
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New Hampshire Dopartment of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPUANCE i

The Federal Funding Accountablity end Trensparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual

Federal grants equal to or greatar than $25,000 and awarded an or after October 1, 2010, to report on
datn related to executive compensation and associated firet-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
intia} awand ls below $28,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the awerd is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, es of the date of the award.

In sccordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any
subawand or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award *
Funding agency :
NAICS coda for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program cource -
Award titls descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entlty
Principle piace of performance
Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS #) _
. Tote! compensation and namaes of the top five executives If:
10.1. Mora than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemment, and those
revenues are greatar than $26M annually and . ’ '
10.2. Compensation information I not glready avallable through ;epon(ng to the SEC.

- Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which

the sward or award amendment is made.

The Contracior identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provislong agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 108-282 and Public Law 110-252,
"and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agress

1o have the Confractor's representative, as identtfied In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions

execute the following Certification:
The beiow namad Contractor agrees to provide needed informafion as outlined above to the NH

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with afl applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountzbllity and Transparency Act _

Confractor Name: Co;t& P‘\Yﬂ"‘ﬁ:—ﬂ/ LLC.
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | cettify that the responses to the
below listed questions are frue and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ﬂl - 1085 - 002 -

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) B0 percent or more of your annual gross revenus in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, end/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,060 or more In annuel
gross revenues from .S, federsl contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrents, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the anM to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the exscutives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)} or section 6104 of the Intemnal Revenue Code of
10887

e hla

— NO ¥ = YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

if the answer to #3 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highty compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount
I‘;lame: Amount
Name: _ "~ : - i Amount
Name: Amount:
Name: : - Amount: 000 S
Pvs o ..
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Exhibit K
DHHS information Securlty Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the describad meaning in this document:

o

1.

“Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized aoqulsition, unauthorized access, or any simlar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access .to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, * Breach® shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach® in section
' 164,402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

“Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, Nationa! Institule of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

“Confidential Informetion™ or “Confidential Data" means -all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financlal, public
assistance bensfits and personal Information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Informstion and

Persanally Identiflable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - creatad, received from or on behalf of the Department of Heatth and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
sarvices - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and dispositlon is governed by

- state or federgl law or regulation. This Information includes; but is not (imited to

Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pi), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federa! Tax Information (FT1), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), end or other sensitive and oonﬁdential information.

“End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractors employee,
business mssociate, subcontractor, other downsiream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

“HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portabllity and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder. -

“Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either falled or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/00/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initiats ﬂ@_
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data et risk of unauthorized
accsss, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network™ means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Depeartment of information
Technology or delegate as s protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Perscnal Information” (or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as thelr name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with cther personal or Identifying information which Is linkad
or linkabla to a specific individual, such as data and place of birth, mother's maiden
hamae, aic.

8. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Informetion at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promuigated under HIPAA by the United -
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Infomation™ (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45CF.R. §
180.103.

11. "Security Rule® shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Elactronic
Protected Hesith Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendmems
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information® means Protected Health Information that ts
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protacted Health Information
unusable, unreadabls, or indeciphersble to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accreditad by
the American Natlonal Standards institute.

I. RESPONSIBILIMES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidentia Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintaln or transmit Confidentlal Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintaln or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

VA. Lastupdats 100018 Exhiblt K Contractor initiaty ‘
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request for disclosure on the basls that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHE so that DHHS has an opportunity to
congent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictlons over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI

pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI {n violation of such addiionsl

restrictions and must abide by any additional securtty safeguards.
4. The Contractor agrees that DHMHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuan to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any ather purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

Il. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidantial Data between applications, thé Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that sald
application’s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may cnly employ emall to transmit Confidential Data If
emall Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to recelve such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to fransmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
seoure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. ’

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service, End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Indlvidual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidentlal Data sald devices must be encryptsed and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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‘wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

8. Remcte User Communication. If End User | employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's moblle device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriats disclosure of
informatlon. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour aute-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be delated every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidentia! Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

/
The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatevar form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Restention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requiremant shall also apply In the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud sterage capebilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agreaes to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Depariment confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronlc and hard coples of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A2

5. The Contractor agrees Confldential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compllant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices musi have
curmrently-supperted and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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v.

whole, must have eggressive intrusion-detsction and firewal!l protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State’s
Chlef Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. H the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
abtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire dala shall be rendered unrecoverable via a sacure wipe program
in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanlilzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degsaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidefines
for Media Sanitization, Nationa! Institite of Stendards end Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing &t
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all detalls necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,

. reguiatory end professional standards for retention requirements will be jointty
eveluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. .

2. Unless otherwise 'spedﬁed. within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Confract, Contractor agrees to destroy ail hard coples of Confidentizl Data using a
secure method such ag shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30} days of the termination of this

Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic COnﬂdentiaI Data
by means of data erasure, lso known as secure data wiping.

PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Confractor will maintain proper securlty contrals to protect Depariment
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contracior will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information ifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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Naw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring cepabiliies are in place to
detect potential securlty events that can Impact State of NH systems andlor
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Usefs in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporling the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes thal defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compllance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for tha Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use egreements as part of
obtaining and malintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed end signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access belng authorized.

8. If the Department determinas the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Conftractor wili execute 8 HIPAA Business Assoclate Agreement
(BAA) with the Dapartment and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request o complete a System
Managemertt Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, end vuinerabililes that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an aftemate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be compieted when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

14. Data Security Breach Liabllity. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

the bresch, incl_uding but not limited to: credit monltoring services, malling costs and
costs essociated with website and telephone call center services necessary due fo

the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Inforration, and must in all other respects.
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not iimited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1874 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 CF.R §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and es applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevant unauthorized use or access to ft. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not fess than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https.//mww.nh.govidoitivendor/index. htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement infarmation relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of eny security breach Immediately, at the emall addresses
provided in Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their officlal duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that afl End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
Implamented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

¢. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, Pi, or
- PFlare encrypted and password-protected.
d. send emalls containing Confidential information only if encrypted and being
sent to and belng recelved by emall addresses of persons authorzed to
recelve such information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

{. -Confidential information recelved under thls Contract and indMiduelly
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
blometric identiflers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable infermation, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted et all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above,

h. in all other Instances Confidentisl Date must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as detarmlned by a risk-based
assessmeant of the clircumstances Involved.

* I understand that thelr user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep thelr credential information secure.
This epplies to credentials used to acceas the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsibls for oversight and compliance of thelr End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and othser applicable lsws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidentlal Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Confractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, -t the ‘email addresses provided in
Section V.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incldents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handilng and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 308. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with &t applicable cbligations and prooeduras
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

Identify Incidents;
Determine if personally identifiable Information is involved in Incidents;
Report suspected or confirmed incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to incidents; and

O N
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, i so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear cosis assoclated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures,

incidents and/or Breaches thst implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, es
appiicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHS!InformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hercby centify that CORE PHYSICIANS, LLC is
a New Hampshire Limited Liability Company registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 31, 2007. 1 further certify
that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business 1D: 581955
Certificate Number: 0004966293

IN TESTIMONY WH ERE_OF.

| hercto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Scal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 27th day of July A.D. 2020.

For o

William M. Gardner

Secrctary of State




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Constance D. Sprauer , hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Ofticer of the Corporation/LLC: cannel be coniract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Core Physicians, LLC
(Corporation/_LC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a mesting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on July 30, 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Date)

VOTED: That Debra Cresta (may list more than one person)
{Name and Title of Contract Signaiory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Core Physicians, LLC to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
{Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of ils agencies or departmenis and further is authorized to execule any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, whlch
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to eftect the purpose of this vots.

3.1 hereby certity that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effact as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days irom the date of this Certificate of Authorily. | further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this centificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authorily of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein,

Dated:7/31/2020 : Coze D e

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Constance D. Sprausr
Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Page 1 of 1

DATE {MMDDIYYYY)
07/30/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
Willis Towers Watson Northeast,
c/o 26 Century Blvd

P.O. Box 305191
Nashvilla, ™

Ing,

372305191 USA

ﬁﬁgcr Willis Towers Watson Certificate Canter

(Ao No. Exu; 1877-945-7378 FAX oy 1-888-467-2378

l,\g‘p“nléss: certificaceslwillis.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE HAIC #
. INSURER A : EXeter Health Resources Inc C339%
INSURED INSURER B ; Midweast Employers Casualty Company 23612
CORE Physicians, LIC.
5 Alumni Drive INSURER € :
Exeter, NH 03833 INSURER D :
INSURERE
INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: W17417120

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONODITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

WSR AEBEF“U!;R POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTSR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WyD POLICY NUMBER {MMDDYYYY) | {MMIDDIYYYY) LIMITS
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
"OAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES {Ea occurrence) | $
A MED EXP (Any one person) 1]
 MLEX5200 SELF INSURED 12/31/2019 (12/31/2020| nepconal 8 ADVIUURY | §
ENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 6,000,000
X ] povicy [ 8% Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $
OTHER: [
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea_accident] d
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per parson) | §
OWNED SCHMEDULED -
| | AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Par accident) | $
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|| AuTos onLY AUTOS ONLY | (Per accident}
s
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE H
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
peD | | AETENTION § s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER_ OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YiN [E5Rrme | &R
B |ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNERIEXECUTIVE E.L EACH ACCIDENT N 1,000,000
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? D NIA EWC008504 01/01/2020|01/01/2022
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § 1,000,000
Il yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § - 200,
A |Medical Professional Liability MLEXS200 SELF INSURED , [12/31/2019(12/31/2020!Each Claim $1,000,000
Aggregate $3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 104, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached |! more space is required)

5

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH Departmant of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Strest
Concord, NH 03301-3857

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

QM«WM—

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
SR ID: 19924557

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registerad marks of ACORD

BATCH: 1765455




FORM NUMBER P-37 (varsion 12/11/2019)

Sabject:_Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing (SS-2021-DPHS-04-HOSPI-08)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprictary must -
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior 1o signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pieasant Streel :
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Appledore Medical Group, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

2000 Health Park Drive, Suite |
Brentwood, TN 37027-5053

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

(603) 766-7560

1.6 Account Number

05-095-090-903010-
19010000

1.7 Completion Date - 1.8 Price Limitation

December 1, 2020 $580,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-963)

1.11 Contractor Signature

ey mafeac

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signetory

SVZ2annl Berqama
Division e, Fc*lcgcbnrt-

1.13  State Signattre
‘Mw Date: gg/04/2020

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Lisa Morris, Director, Division of Public Health Services - NH DHHS

By:

115" Appraval by the N.H. Depaniment of Adminisiration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

by (Cathercee Prinoa

1.16  Approval by the Attorney Genera) (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

08/05/20

G&C ltern number:

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if appiicable)

G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), cngages contractor identified in block 1.3
(*"Contractor”) to perform, and the Cantractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the atteched EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Counci! approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become cffective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date"),

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Datc shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event thai this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Scrvices performed.
Contractor must complete ell Scrvices by the Complction Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Stale hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or olherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no cvent shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the rght to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shafl have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
piving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account gre reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, 2nd terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hercof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H, RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-¢ or any other provision of law,

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. )

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS! EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal
authoritics which impose any obligation or duly upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and cqual
cmployment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issuc to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws. ’

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
oricntation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
aecessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort 10
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State’s representative.” In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Statc.may ’

take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

B.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it 1o be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price

which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the

period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a writlen notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as bréached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State 1o enforce any provisions hereof afier
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No'express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce cach and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the pan of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole '

discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pant, by thirty (30} days written notice 10 the Contractor that
the State is cxcrcising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the cvent of an carly termination of this Agreement for
any reason othcr than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifieen (15) days afler the date
of termination, a report (“Termination Repent”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price carned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State’s discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION. ;

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
petformance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,

. letiers, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether

finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propeny of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason,

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapier 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State 10 its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or & transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifly percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity intcrests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an essignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwisc exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against-any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the

Page 3 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date _"7|%1(120




~

Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed 1o conslitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall surwve the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, oblain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or cxcess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all propeny
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in &n amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depariment of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire,

14.3 The Contractor shall fumnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten {(10) days prior to the cxpiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requiremeats of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (" [Forkers’
Compensation'}.

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee lo secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
aclivitics which the person proposes 1o undertake pursuant 10 this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers®
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers’
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers” Compensation laws in  connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any noticc by a party hereto to the other pany
shall be decmed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
partics hercto and only afier approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Govermnor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circurnstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agrccment shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording uscd in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any aclions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall havc
exclusive jurisdiction thereof. -

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or atizchments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall contro).

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit,

21, HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any statc or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
execuled in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the partics, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understendings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital—Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROV!SION-S

1. Revlslons'to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective DateICompIehon of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor of the State of New Hampshire,
issued under the Executive Order 2020-04 and any extensions thereof,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become
effective on August 1, 2020. ("Effective Date").

1.2, Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The partiss may extend the Agreement for up to one (1) additional year
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and required
govermnmental approval,

1.3. Paragraph 12, Subparagraph 12.3, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, i§
amended as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subconiractor's

- performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongolng basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify

. the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

Appledore Medical Group, Inc. Exhibit A : Contractor inftiats QB
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-18 Community Testing

EXHIBITB

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1.  For the purposes of this agreement, any references to days shall mean
calendar days.

1.2. The Contractor shall conduct specimen collection and testing for SARS-CoV-2
in an outpatient setting for individuals who reside within the hospital catchment
area or local community, regardless. of individuals' pricr affiliations with the
hospital.

1.3. The Contractor shali conduct specimen collection and testing for patients who
have symptoms of COVID-19 or who are pre-symptomatic or asymptomatic at
the request of:

1.3.1. The individual -to be tested; or

1.3.2." The Department of Health and Human Sérvices (Department) Division
of Public Health Services (DPHS).

1.4. The Contractor shall not require an office or telemedicine visit for asymptomatic
patients in order for patients to receive COVID-19 testing.

1.5. In the event of a significant increase in community transmission of COVID-19,
the Contractor shall not be responsible for meeting significantly increased
levels of testing and may request the Department to provide additional testing
capacity.

1.6. The Contractor shall determine the appropriate venue and physical location for
specimen callection, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.6.1. An existing physical location.
1.6.2. A temporary drive-through location.
1.6.3. A drive-up facility.

1.7. The Confractor shall request a waiver, if necessary, from the Department's
Bureau of Health Facilities Administration for a temporary drive-through
" location or drive-up facility.

1.8. The Contractor shall determine the appropriate number of days per week and
the duration of time per day to perform community specimen collection for
COVID-19 testing to meet the needs of the hospital catchment area and local
community and communicate the hours of operation to the Department. ‘

1.9. The Contractor shall ensure the collection, handling, processing and testing of
specimens comply with guidelines issued by the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC), available at hitps:/www.cdc.govicoronavirus/2019-
nCoV/lab/quidelines-clinical-specimens.html and by the laboratory used for
processing specimens.

Appledore Medical Group, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials ﬁ_r
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-18 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

1.10. The Contractor shall ensure patients sign an appropriate consent form, prior to
collection of specimens, authorizing testing at the laboratory and reporting to
the ordering medical provider, the Department, and any other individua! or
entity designated to receive the test results.

1.11. The Contractor shall identify of any communication access needs to ensure
needed language assistance is provided, which may include, but is not limited
to: ’

1.11.1. Over-the-phone interpretation of spoken languages.
1.11.2. Video remote interpretation to access American Sign Language.

1.12. The Contractor shall ensure communication and language assistance is
provided 1o individuals, as appropriate and needed, to ensure the validity of any
signed consent by utilizing translated consent forms and/or interpreters.

1.13. The Contractor shall ensure all personnel collecting, handling, processing and
transporting specimens are trained to safeguard the confidentiality of the
patient and protected health information (PHI), as defined in-the Health
Information Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).

1.14. The Contractor shall ensure the secure and confidential transporting of
specimens to the laboratory.

1.15. The Contractor shall ensure the ordering provider for each COVID-19 test is a
licensed medical provider.

1.16. The Contractor shall ensure the licensed medical provider ordering COVID-19
tests notifies patients of testing results received from the laboratory in a timely
manner. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.16.1. Patients with positive results confirming the diagnosis of COVID-19 are
informed:

1.16.1.1. By telephone or other electronic method.

1.16.1.2. By first-class U.S. mail, if telephone or other electronic
method is unsuccessful

1.16.2. Patients with negative results are informed of test results in a method
determined by the Contractor.

1.17. The Contractor shall utilize existing communication methods to inform the loca!
community of the availability of outpatient COVID-19 testing, which may
include, but are not limited to:

1.17.1. The hospital's website.

1.17.2. Hospital newsletters.
1.17.3. Social media platforms.
1.18. The Contractor shall ensure published information includes how and when
Appledore Medical Group, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials g& -
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospntal—Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

patients can access the services and the location of the specimen collection
site.

1.19. The Contractor shall ensure any marketing materials abide by existing
requirements for communication access, including but not limited to:

1.19.1. Vital and significant materials should be made available in additional
languages, as appropriate, and must be translated by qualified,
competent translation providers, as follows:

1.19.1.1. Statewide, only Spanish meets the criteria for translation.

1.19.1.2. Translation is required for languages depending on
factors including the number and proportion of LEP
persons served or likely to seek .services in the
Contractor's service areas, and the frequency with which
LEP individuals come into contact with the Contractor's
programs, activities and services. .

1.19.1.3. Notification on all materials of the availability of free
communication access and language assistance for any
individuals who may require it.

1.19.1.4. Al materials have a phone number to call for further
information, ensuring staff answering that phone number
shall have access to over-the-phone interpretation to
assist callers who need spoken language interpretation.

1.20. The Contractor shall provide communication and language assistance at all
points of .contact in accessing COVID-19 testing to individuals with
communication access needs, including individuals with limited English
proficiency, or individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss.

1.21. The Contractor shall conduct outreach to vulnerable populations and minority
populations in the hospital catchment area or iocal community, including
notifying partner organizations who work with these populations about the
availability of COVID-19 testing.

1.22. The Contractor shall report both positive and negative test results to the
Division of Public Health Services through the Electronic Laboralory Reporting
(ELR) system, or ensure the laboratory used for processing specimens and
conducting testing reports both positive and negative results to the Division of
Public Health Services through the ELR system.

1.23. The Contractor shall report all positive cases of COVID-19 with complete case
information by fax to (603) 271-0545 to the Division of Public Health Services
using the New Hampshire Confidential COVID-19 Case Report Form available
at: https://www.dhhs.nh.govidphs/cdcs/covid 19/covid19-reporting-form.pdf.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

1.24. The Contractor shall notify patients who are uninsured or do not have full
coverage benefits for COVID-19 testing that New Hampshire Medicaid has
established a COVID-19 Testing Benefit that may pay for testing and diagnosis
of COVID-19 for persons who are not already a Medicaid beneficiary and do
not have full coverage for COVID-19 testing and diagnosis. The Contractor
shall assist patients in completing the application available at
hitos://nheasy.nh.gov.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule} (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Porlability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, wh.ich are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

2.3. The Contractor's Use and Responsibilities for Confidential Information are as
follows. '

2.3.1. The Contractor agrees to use, disciose, maintain, or transmit
" Confidential Data from Providers as required, specifically authorized, or
permitted under the Contract or this Agreement. Further, the Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and
agents, agrees not to use, disclose, maintain, or transmit PHI in any
manner-that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security
Rules. The Contractor shali provide Confidential Information as required
by the Contract, RSA 141-C:7, 141-C:9, RSA 141-C:10, and in a form
required by He-P 301.03 and the “New Hampshire Local Implementaticn
Guide for Electronic Laboratory Reporting for Communicable Disease
and Lead Test Results Using HL7 2.5.1,” Version 4.0 (5/23/2016), found

at: https.//iwww.dhhs .nh.qov/dphs/bphsi/documents/elrguide.pdf.

2.3.2. The Contractor shall transmit Confidential Information to the Division of

: Public Health Services by means of a secure file transport protocol

(sFTP) provided by the Department and agreed to by the parties and
approved by the Department's Information Security Officer.

2.3.2.1. Any individual seeking credentials to access the sFTP site shall
sign and return to the Department a "Data Use and
Confidentiality Agreement” (Attachment A) when requesting
sFTP account.

2.3.3. The Contractor shall transmit the Confidential Information o the Division
of Public Health Services as required by statute and this Agreement,
namely:

Appledore Medical Group, Inc. Exhibil B Contractor Initials S@
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

2.3.3.1. All test results, including but not limited to positive and negative
results, shall be reported electronically via electronic laboratory
reporting procedures, also referred to as ‘ELR,” as noted
above.

2.3.3.2. Test resuits shall be provided within 24 hours of the test being
completed.

2.4. As necessary, the Contractor agrees to comply with any request to correct or
complete the data once transmitted to the Division of Public Health Services.

2.5. The Contractor agrees that the data submitted shall be the “minimum
necessary” to carry out the stated use of the data, as defined in the HIPAA
“Privacy Rule and in accordance with all applicable confidentiality laws.

2.6. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be construed in accordance the
terms of Contract and governed by the laws of the State of New Hampshire.

2.7. The Contractor and the Department agree to nagotiate an amendment to

' this Agreement as needed to address a Contract amendment, or any
changes in policy issues, fiscal issues, information security, and other
specific safeguards required for maintaining confidentiality of the data.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1.  The Contractor shalt submit monthly reports to the-Department showing tlhat
the public is able to access COVID-19 testing, including, but not limited to:

3.1.1. Number of persons -who received COVID-19 testing.

3.1.2. Number of persons assisted with enroliment in the Medicaid COVID-19
Testing benefit or other assistance program who received COVID-19
testing.

3.1.3. Number of parsons for whom race and/or ethnicity is documented.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure race and/or ethnicity demographic identifiers for
the persons who received COVID-19 testing are collected consistently and’
correctly, in accordance with best praclice standards and processes as
provided by the Office of Heath Equity, and entered either manually or
electronically on the hospital or reference laboratory COVID-19 test requisition
forms.

4. Additional Terms
4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achiave
compliance therewith.

Appladore Medical Group, Inc. Exhibit B Contracior [nitials-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBITB

4.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

4.2.1. The Contractor shall submit within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, and comply with, a detailed description of the
communication access and language assistance services they will
provide to ensure meaningful access to their programs andfor
services to persons with limited English proficiency, people who are
deaf or have hearing loss, are blind or have low vision, or who have
speech challenges. '

4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, “The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.”

4.3.2. Al materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

4.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to: brochures,
resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters and reports.

4.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department,

4.4, Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

4.4.1. Inthe operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or pemit shall be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said licanse or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the

Appledare Medical Group, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials %
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-18 Community Testing
EXHIBIT B

Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shalil be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5. Records
5.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

5.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
‘evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shal include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each

-such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services. :

-

'5.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

5.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
HOSPITAL-BASED COVID-19 COMMUNITY TESTING

EXHIBIT B -1

By requesting and recaiving approval to use confidential data for Depariment purposes:

»  lunderstand that | will have direct and indirect access to confidential information in the course of performing
my work activities.

¢+ | agree to protect the confidential nature of all information to which | have access.

+ | understand thal there are state and federal laws and regulations that ensure the confidentiality of an
 individual's information.

. | understand that there are Department policies and agency procedures with which | am required to compty
related to the protection of individually identifiable information.

¢ | understand that the information extracted from the site shall not be shared outside this Scope of Work or
related signed Memorandum of Understanding and/or information Exchange Agreement/Data Sharing
Agreement agreed upon.

* lunderstand that my SFTP or any information security credentials (user name and password) should not be
shared with anyone. This applies to credenua!s used to access the site directly or indirecily through a third
party application.

e | will not disclose or make use of the identity, financia! or health information of any person or establishment
discovered inadvertently. | will repot such discoveries as soon as feasible to
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov and DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov, but no more than
24 hours after the aforementioned has occurred and that Confidential Data may have been exposed or
compromised. If a suspected or known informalion security event, Computer Security Incident, Incident or
Breach involves Social Security Administration (SSA) provided data or Internal Revenue Services (IRS})
provided Federal Tax Information {(FTi).

« | will not imply or state, either In written or oral form, that interpretations based on the data are those of the
original data sources or the State of NH unless the data user and the Department are formally collaborating.

e 1 will acknowedge, in all reports or presentations based on these data, the original source of the data.

s | understand how | am expected to ensure the protection of individually identifiable information. Should
questions arise in the future about how te protect information to which | have accass, | will immediately notify
my supervisor.

« | understand that | am legally and ethically obligated to maintain the conﬂdenllahly of Department client,

patient, and other sensitive information that is protected by information security, privacy or confidentiality
rules and stale and federal laws even after | leave the employment of the Departiment.

* | have been informed that this signed agreement will be retained on file for future reference.

)&%@&(@Aww 1pako
Signatu 0 Date! "

Supanne Be raarmo . Tivieion Vie Preciclartt™

Prmted Name Title

Applecore Medice| roopne

Busiess Name

: »,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by the Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for
Prevention and Control of Emerging Infectious Diseases (ELC) cooperative
agreement from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Division of

- Prepardness and Emerging Infections, CFDA #93.323, FAIN #NU50CK000522.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2, The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. This Agreement is for COVID-19 testing and testing-related activities to be
conducted between August 1, 2020 and December 1, 2020.

4. Payment: -

4.1. The Department will pay the Contractor the amount listed in box 1.8
Price Limitation included in the General Provisions Form Number P-37,
for providing the services included in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, after
the Effective Date of the Contract.

4.1.1. The Contractor shall submit an expense report in a form
satisfactory to the State every sixty (60) days, which identifies
allowable expenses incurred during the duration of the contract.

4.1.2.  Any unspent start-up payment funds will be returned to the
- Department within sixty (60) calendar days of contract
expiration date.

4.1.3. Inlieu of hard copies, all expense reports may be assigned an
electronic  signature and must be emailed to
dphscontractbilling@dhhs.nh.gov.

5. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

6. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be recouped, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services. ~

7. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their .activities related to
Department-funded programs and services and have records avallable for
Department review, as requested.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be recouped, in whole or in part, in the event
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of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement. '

9. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

10. Audits

10.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

10.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
. federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

10.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, llI-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

10.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

10.2.  If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Cerlified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

10.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year. ‘

10.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Appladore Medical Group, Inc. Exhibit C Contraclor Inilials
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Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQU[REME‘NTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subfitle D: 41
U.5.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's rapresentative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elecl 1o make one certification to the Department in each fedsral fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during thé federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a

- material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False -
certification or violation of the cerlification shalf be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

" NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 033016505

1. The grantee cerlifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

. 1.1, Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2.  Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2.  The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-frae workptace;
1.2.3.  Any available drug counseting, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
.1.2.4. Ths penalties that may bes imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3, Making it 2 requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4.  Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the tarms of the statement; and
1.4.2.  Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction,; )

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual natice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Ext¥bit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials %%____
Workplace Requlremsnts
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Nolice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant; ’ -
1.6. Teking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.8.1.  Taking appropriate personnel action against such an empioyes, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not idantified here.’

Vendor Name:

D tvz\‘m}w ﬁ%m " ND
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

c FICATION REGARD LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
“Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the bast of his or her knowledge and belief; that:

1. No Federa! appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
medification of any Federa! contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclesura Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers {including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was ptaced when this transaction '
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required

certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

2 e
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
consklered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enfer into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary paricipant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal {contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erraneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reasan of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” "suspended,” “ineligible.” "lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” "persan,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” "proposal,” and
“‘voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this preposal {contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared inefigible, or voluntarily excluded
frorn participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS,

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause tiled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lowar tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaclion that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shali be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Dabarment, Suspension Vandor Initials g%
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information of a participant is not required 1o exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent \
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to cther remedies available to the Federal governmeni, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant cerlifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal depariment or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal {contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a coniract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property,
11.3. are not presently indicled for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph {J)(b)
of this certification; and i
11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposa! {contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shafl attach an explanation to this proposal (contract),

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause enlitled *Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibllity, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaclions,” without medification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

4| Sy B
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F| ION OF CO IANC REQUIRE ] NING T
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d} which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, refigion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equa! Employmant Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Strests Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminaling, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national arigin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or henefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 {42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal apporiunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendmants of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs:

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.5.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federa! financial assistance. [t does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Depariment of Justice Regulations — Nendiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Palicies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations ~ Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations), and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employse Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhiblt G
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In the event a Federal or Stats court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due procass hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Heafth and Human Services, and
to the Departiment of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and-1.12 of the General Provisions, te execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

A e T
ale ame. g g i
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CERTIFICATION REGARDIN RONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Eavironmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the sarvices are funded by Federal programs either
direclly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and pertions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
te comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signaluré of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Saction 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Vendor Name:
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected heallh information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Itlo

a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in sectic;n 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations. ‘

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501,

f. "Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
- in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'H|TECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Hea!tlj Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually ldentifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

J.  “Prvacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health

Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Cavered Entity.

32014 Exhibil | Contractor Initials &
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. “Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

.. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,

unreadable, or indecipherable to unautherized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH '

Act. ‘

(2)  Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PH!) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. °~ Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
3 For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
|[3 For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity. N

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHi to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying -
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

/2014 Exhibit 1 Coniractar Initials & .
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(3)

32014

Assaclate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Assoclate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to: -

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelthood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whaether the pratected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall comblete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that recelve, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR ~
Section 164.528,

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to viclate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shallinstead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PH)
received from, or created or received by the Business Assaciate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHi to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Assoclate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Assaciate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revacation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164 .508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164,522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Assaciate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. if Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscejlaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federai and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. '

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e, Seqregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition: to this end the
terms and condilions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Department of Health and Human Services

typokedaie Mediu] 6oup, o

The Stat

Signature of Authorized Representative

Lisa Morris

Name of the Contractor

ignature of Authoriz epresentative

<J20hng, BerapmD

Name of Authorized Representative

Director - Division of Public Health Services

Name of Authorized Répresentative

Divisdn Vile.

Title of Authorized Representative

August 4, 2020

Title of Authorized Representative

Date Date ’
32014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials %_
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The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA} requires prime awardees of individual
Federa! grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award,

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Servicas (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Princlple place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity {DUNS #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if.
10.1. More than B0% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2, Compensation information is not already available through reparting to the SEC

SN ABN~

Prime grant reciplents must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sectlons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contraclor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

’rbfth@

Date | Name:

e
e TIVISIN VIU-%M_

' Exhiblt J - Certification Regarding the Faderal Funding Contractor Inktlals
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 70
CUDHHSN 10713 Pege 1 of 2 Dalaj_J




Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit

EQRM A
As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listad questions sre tue and accurate.

1. The DUNS numbet for your entity is: 0 3043 | R41 7

‘2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percant or more of your 2nnual gross revenus in 11.S. fedaral contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grents, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in snnual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, lans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperstive agreements?

X___NO YES

if the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here

if the answer to #2 above is YES, pleass answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the exacutives In your
business or organization through periodic reports fled under saction 13(a) or 15(¢) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.,S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of
18867

NO YES
if the answer to #3 gbave is YES, stop here
i the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Name
Name
Name. Amount:
Name
Name

Amount:

Exhiblt J - Cerification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Inkisls S

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA} Compliance
CLVDIBLRII 10713 Pge20of2 Dsta -_I )ﬁ




New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human-Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, “ Breach® shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Titte 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data® means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance -
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health information and
Personally |dentifiable Information. ‘

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Depariment of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal ltaw or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information {FT1), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry {PCI}, and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity {(e.g., contractar, contractor's employee,.
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portabillity and Accountabllity Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempls (either falled or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowladge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through thefi or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, afl of which may have the potentia!l to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a prolected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information” (or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heafth
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the Umted
States Department of Health and Human Services,

10. "Protected Health Information” {or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic

Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information™ means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in respbnse to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant fo thle terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryplion. If - End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application’s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

8. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confildential Data, a virtval private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-foiders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours),

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

ll. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by iaw or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the partles must:

A. Retention

1. The. Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contraclor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can.impact State of NH systems
andfor Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
. in a secure localion and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
oblain written certification for any State of New Hampshire ‘data destroyed by the-
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Depariment of Commarce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destrayed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thity (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination:of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY
A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under thls Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Depariment
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policles and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper securily monitoring capabllities are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidenttal information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized,

8. If the Department delermines the Contraclor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Businass Associate Agreement
{BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtalned from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Indw:dually identifiable health
mformatlon and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/fwww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/mdex.htm
for the Department of information Technology poficies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendars.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incidert
response process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer and the
State's Security ‘Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15..Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
parform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, thaft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

¢. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI Pl or:
PFlare encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric idantifiers, etc.).

0. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section |V above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assassment of the circumstances involved._

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure,
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State’s Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Sectian VI.

The Contractor must further handle and repornt Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor’s compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor’s procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. ldentify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

DHHS Information

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials 97__
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures. :

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer.
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

V5, Last update 10/05/18 Exhibit K Contraclor Initials i
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Siate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby centify that APPLEDORE MEDICAL
GROUP, INC. is a Delaware Profit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshirc on November 19, 2009. |
further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concemed,

Business 1 622449
Certificate Number; 0004968972

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

| hereto set my hand and cause to be aftixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 30th day of July A.D. 2020,

2 N
T\“‘“%« “'“"' g
\\W -._/_/_,_j—- SR [ 9/
NN =i 7 ﬁ.ﬁ,,/

Wiltiam M. Gardner

Qtﬂ R

Secretary of State




Delaware

The First State

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY “APPLEDORE MEDICAL GROUP, INC." IS DULY
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE -OF DELAWARE AND IS IN GOCD
STANDING AND HAS A LEGAL CORPORATE EXISTENCE SO FAR AS THE RECORDS
OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE THIRTIETH DAY OF JULY, A.D. 2020.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL REPORTS HAVE
BEEN FILED TC DATE.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE FRANCHISE TAXES HAVE

BEEN PAID TO DATE.

Qmw.mmdﬂdn b]

Authentication: 203375389
Date: 07-30-20

4719312 8300

SR# 20206491152
You may verify this certificate online at corp.delaware.gov/authver.shtml




INCUMBENCY CERTIFICATE

APPLEDORE MEDICAL GROUP, INC.

The undersigned, being duly elected and actiﬁg as Vice President and Secretary of
Appledore Medical Group, Inc. (the “Company”), a Delaware corporation, does hereby
certify that the person listed below is a duly authorized officer of the Company appointed
by the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board™) at a meeting of the Board duly
called and held on October 7, 2019 to serve in the capacity set forth opposite her name and
that she has propér corporate power and authority to execute and deliver documents and to

take other actions on behalf of the Company:

Suzanne Bergamo Vice President

[ hereby attest that this information is true and correct as of this 29th day of July, 2020.

By:
Ndtalie B¢ {{Kre
Vice President and Secretary



Health Care Indemnity, Inc.
I]II]GI] m 2515 Park Plaza, Building 2-3E
Nashville, TN 37203

Phone: 615-344-5193
Health Care Fax: 855-775-0393

Page 1 0f 1

Certificate of Insurance

Date: 07/29/2020

Indemni inc. Email:Corp.Insurance@HCAHealthcare.com

Y, P e ™ com: 78021-2020
This is to certify to: ’ State of New Hampshire

(Name of Certificale Holder) Department of Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Streetl
Concord, NH

that the described insurance coverages as providad by the indicated policy has been issued to;

Named Insured: ' HCA HEALTHCARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY ORGANIZATIONS
Address: EXISTING NOW OR HEREAFTER CREATED OR ACQUIRED
ONE PARK PLAZA

NASHVILLE, TN 37202-0550

The Policy identlfled below by a policy number is in force on the date of Certilicale issuance. Insurance is afforded only with respeclllo thosa coverages for which
a specific limit of liabllity has been entered and is subject to all the terms of the Policy having raference thereto. This Certificate of Insurance neither affirmatively

nor negatively amends, extends or aliers the coverage afforded under any policy identified herain,

POLICY NO. ~ POLICY PERIOD

Effective: 1/1/2020
HCI-10120 Expiration: 1/1/2021

TYPE OF INSURANCE

LIMITS OF LIABILITY

Comprehensive General Liability -
+ Occurrence Form

+ Bodily tnjury $1,000,000 Each and Every Occurrence
» Property Damage :

» Products and Completed Operations $3,000.000 Aggregate

+ Personal and Advertising Injury

Health Care Professional Liability $1,000,000 Each and Every Occurrence
Occurrence Form $3,000,000 Aggregate

SPECIAL CONDITIONS/OTHER COVERAGES:

The Named Insured Includes: Appledore Medical Group, Inc.
TIN 02-0470410 COID: 34634

Re: COVID-19 Testing Contract

Cancettation: Should any of the above described policies be canceled before the expiration date thereol, the issuing company will endeavor to mail ninety days writlen
notice (o the abova named certificate holder, but failure to mail such notice shall impose no obligation or liabitity of any kind upon (he company.

i

Authorized Signature




FORM NUMBER P-37 (verskon 12/11/2019)

Subjecs:_Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing (85-2021-DPHS-04-HOSPI-12)

Naotice: This zgreement and all of its attechments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Exccutive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified 10 the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Siwate Agency Name

New Hampshire Depantiment of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pieasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

The Memorial Hospital at North Conway

1.4 Contrector Address

3073 White Mountain Hwy
North Conway, NH 03860

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

1.6 Account Number

05-095-090-903010-

(603) 356-5461 19010000

1.7 Completion Datc 1.8 Price Limitation

December 1, 2020 $145,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631

111 Cont Signaw

277

r Signatory

[.12 Name and Title of Contrac
/( Tty

ur (<
—tes et

(143~ State Agency Signafure

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Lon MibGiner, Commissionwy

By:

Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel fif applicable)

Director, On:

By: (Cathorine firoa

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

08/10/20

G&C Item number:

1.17 Approval by the Governor end Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
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2, SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("Stie™), engages coniractor identified in  block 1.3
(“Contractor™) 1o perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the atached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement 1o the
contrary, and subject 1o the approval of the Governor and
Exccutive Council of the State of New Hampshirc, if applicable,
this Agreement, and ali obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17.

unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement

shall become effective on the datc the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in bloek 1.13 (“Effective Date™.
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior 10 the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any. obligation 10 pay (he
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemenl 0 the
contrary, all obligations of the Siate hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no cvent shall the State be liable for any payments
hercunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or ternination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately vpen
giving the Comractor notice of such reduction or termination,
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in ENHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability 1o the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law. -

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in (his Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actuslly made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS! EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.’

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable stawtes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including. but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations. -
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminatc against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action 10
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees (o permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and ihe covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personne!
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants thal
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified 1o
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized 1o do so under all applicable laws,

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the 1erm of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6 months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort 10
perform the Services to hire, any person who is o State employee
or official, who is materially invelved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor. shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the inmterpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acis or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™);

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
£.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a writien notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Defaull is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days afier giving the
Contractor notice of termination;  °

8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrilten notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue 10 the Coniractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall ncver be paid to the Contracior;

8.2.3 give the Contracior a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off ‘against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursuc any of its remedies al law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the Stale to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Defaull, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the Siate 10 enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Defauit on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8. the State may. at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Coniractor that
'the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an carly tcrmination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State’s discrction, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services perforned, and the contract price eamed, 1o
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report desceribed in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State’s discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of carly termination, develop and

Page 3 of 4
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agrecment,

10. DATAJACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained durisig the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulac, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouls, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been reccived from
the State or purchascd with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shali be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

L1, CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. inthe
performance ol this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agen! nor an
employce ol the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State 10 its employees.

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided 10 the State at least fifieen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the Siate. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment:  “Change of Control™ means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a (ransaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its afTiliales, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b} the sale of all or substantiatly all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 Nonc of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled 1o copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempied by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, its
officers and employees. from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the Siate, its officers or employces, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acls or omission of the

Contractor Initials w/
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Contractor, or subceontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Nowwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be decmed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved 1o the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
terination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE,

14.1 The Contractor shall, at iis sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and ‘maintain in force, the
following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury. death or property damage, in amounts of nat
less than $1.000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

i4.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish 1o the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s} of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The centificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference,

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION,
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, centifies
and warrants that the Centractor is in compliance with or exempt
from. the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Horkers
Compensetion”).
15.2 To the extent the Conlractor is subject 1o the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontraclor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers® Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes 1o undertake pursuant 10 this
Agreement. The Contraétor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers’
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
atiached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for paymem of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicablc State of New Hampshire
- Workers” Compensation laws in  conpection  with  the
performance of the Services under this Agreemeni.
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16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed 10 have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid. in a United Siates
Post Office addressed to the parties al the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT, This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in wriling signed by the
parties hercto and only afier approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Statc of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant 1o State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shail
be governed. interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panies and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the partics to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreemen: shall be brought and

maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shalt have

exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the lerms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXMIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thercof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shali control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shal in no way be held Lo explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifving
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction 1o be
contrary 10 any slate or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
execuled in a nwinber of counterpans, each of which shall be
deemcd an original, constitules the entire agreement and
undersinding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect Lo the subject matier
hereof.

. w!
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4,

1.5.

Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor of the State of New Hampshire,
issued under the Executive Order 2020-04 -and any extensions thereof,
this Agreement, and ail obligations of the paries hereunder, shall
become effeclive on August 1, 2020. (“Effective Date”).

Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows: :

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to one (1) additional year
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and required
governmental approval.

Subparagraph 8.2.3 of Paragraph 8, Event of Default/ Remedies, is deleted in
its entirety.

Paragraph 12, Subparagraph 12.3, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is
amended as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contraclual conditions as the

Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

Paragraph 5, Contract Price/Price Limitation/Payment, Subparagraph 5.2, is
amended as follows;

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shalt be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of whatever
nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance hereof, and shall be
the only and the complete compensation to the Contractor for the
Services. The State shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the

The Memorial Hospital 8t North Conway, N.H. Exhibit A Contractor Initial‘ ﬂg
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT A

contract price. The Contractor is permitted to bill patients for the COVID-
19 testing conducted under this Agreement. The payment received by
Contractor from the State under this Agreement-shall cover additional
administrative over-head or startup costs that are not otherwise
reimbursable by patients or third party payors.

LR
Contractor Initials O
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

The Memorial Hospital at North Conway, N.H.  Exhibit B Contractor Initials &i

For the purposes of this agreement, any references to days shall mean

- calendar days.

The Contractor shall conduct specimen collection and testing for SARS-CoV-2
in an outpatient setting for individuals who reside within the hospital catchment
area or local community, regardless of mdmduals prior affiliations with the
hospital.

The Contractor shall conduct specimen collection and testing for patients who
have symptoms of COVID-19 or who are pre-symptomatic or asymptomatic at
the request of:

1.3.1. The individual to be tested: or

1.3.2.  The Department of Health and Human Services (Department) Division
of Public Health Services (DPHS).

The Contractor shall not require an office or telemedicine visit for asymptomatic

‘patients in order for patients to receive COVID-19 testing. -

In the event of a significant increase in community transmission of COVID-19,
the Contractor shall not be responsible for meeting significantly increased
levels of testing and may request the Depariment to provide additional testing
capacity.

The Contractor shall determine the appropriate venue and physical location for
specimen collection, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.6.1. An existing physical location.

1.6.2. A temporary drive-through location.

1.6.3. A drive-up facility.

The Contractor shall request a waiver, if necessary, from the Department's
Bureau of Health Facilities Administration for a temporary drive-through
location or drive-up facility.

The Contractor shall determine the appropriate number of days per week and
the duration of time per day to perform community specimen collection for
COVID-19 testing to meet the needs of the hospital catchment area and local
community and communicate the hours of operation to the Department.

The Contractor shall ensure the collection, handling, processing and testing of
specimens comply with guidelines issued by the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC), available at htips://www.cdc.govicoronavirus/2019-
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EXHIBIT B

nCoV/lab/guidelines-clinical-specimens.him! and by the laboratory used for
processing specimens.

1.10. The Contractor shall ensure patients sign-an appropriate consent form, prior to
collection of specimens, authorizing testing at the laboratory and reporting to
the ordering medical provider, the Department, and any other individual or
entity designated to receive the test results.

1.11. The Contractor shall identify of any communication access needs to ensure
‘needed language assistance is provided, which may include, but is not limited
to:

1.11.1. Over-the-phone interpretation of spoken languages.
1.11.2. Video remote interpretation to access American Sign Language.

1.12. The Contractor shall ensure communication and language assistance is
provided to individuals, as appropriate and needed, to ensure the validity of any
. signed consent by utilizing translated consent forms and/or interpreters.

1.13. The Contractor shall ensure all personnel collecting, handiing, processing and
transporting specimens are trained to safeguard the confidentiality of the
patient and protected health information (PH1), as defined in the Health
Information Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).

1.14. The Contractor shall ensure the secure and confidential transporting of
specimens to the laboratory.

-1.15. The Contractor shall ensure the ordering provider for each COVID-19 test is a
licensed medical provider.

1.16. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.16.1. Patients with positive results confirming the diagnosis of COVID-19 are
informed: '

1.16.1.1. By telephone or other electronic method.

1.16.1.2. By first-class U.S. mail, if telephone or other electronic
method is unsuccessful

1.16.2. Patients with negative results are informed of test results in 2 method
determined by the Contraclor.

1.17. The Contractor shall utilize existing communication methods to inform the local
community of the availability of outpatient COVID-19 testing, which may
include, but are not limited to: :

1.17.1. The hospital's website.
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1.17.2. Hospital newsletters.
1.17.3. Social media platforms.

1.18. The Contractor shall ensure published information includes how and when
patients can access the services and the location of the specimen collection
site. '

1.19. The Contractor shall ensure any marketing materials abide by existing
requirements for communication access, including but not limited to:

1.19.1. Vital and significant materials should be made available in additional
languages, as appropriate, and must be translated by qualified,
competent translation providers, as follows:

1.19.1.1. Stat_ewide, only Spanish meets the criteria for translation,

1.19.1.2.  Translation is required for languages depending on
factors including the number and proportion of LEP
persons served or likely to seek services in the
Contractor’s service areas, and the frequency with which
LEP individuals come into contact with the Contractor's
programs, activities and services. .

1.19.1.3. Notification on all materials of the availability of free
communication access and language assistance for any
individuals who may require it.

1.19.1.4.  All materials have a phone number to call for further
information, ensuring staff answering that phone number
shall have access to over-the-phone interpretation to
assist callers who need spoken language interpretation.

1.20. The Contractor shall provide communication and language assistance at all
points of contact in accessing COVID-19 testing to individuals with
communication access needs, including individuals with limited English
proficiency, or individuais who are deaf or have hearing loss.

1.21. The Contractor shall conduct outreach to vulnerable populations and minority
populations in the hospital catchment area or local community, including
notifying partner organizations who work with these populations about the
availability of COVID-19 testing.

1.22. The Confractor shall report both positive and negative test results to the
Division of Public Health Services through the Electronic Laboratory Reporting
(ELR) system, or ensure the laboratory used for processing specimens and
conducting testing reports both positive and negative results to the Division of

Public Health Services through the ELR system.
The Memorial Hospital at North Conway, N.H.  Exhibit B Contractor Initials ( g;
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1.23. The Contractor shall report all positive cases of COVID-19 with complete case
information by fax to (603) 271-0545 to the Division of Public Health Services
using the New Hampshire Confidential COVID-18 Case Report Form available
at: hitps:/f/www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/cdcs/covid19/cavid 19-reporting-form.pdf.

1.24. The Contractor shall notify patients who are uninsured or do not have full
coverage benefits for COVID-19 testing that New Hampshire Medicaid has
established a COVID-19 Testing Benefit that may pay for testing and diagnosis
of COVID-19 for persons who are not already a Medicaid beneficiary and do
not have full coverage for COVID-19 testing and diagnosis. The Contractor
shall assist patients in completing the application available at
hitps://nheasy.nh.qov. :

2. Exhibits Incorporated/Confidential Data

21. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule} (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996.

2.2. The Department will not be receiving, or have possession of, any patient
medical records generated by the Contractor or any subcontracted medical
provider in the course of providing services under this Agreement, and such
patient records will not be considered data for purposes of paragraph 10 of
Form P-37, General Provisions.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through H, and Exhibit J, which
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

2.4. To the extent the Department shares Confidential Data, the Contractor shall
comply with Exhibit K, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

25. The Contractor's Use and Responsibilities for Confdentral Information are as
‘ follows.

2.5.1. The Contractor agrees 1o use, disclose, maintain, or transmit
Confidential Data from Providers as required, specifically authorized, or
permitted under the Contract or this Agreement. Further, the Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and
agents, agrees not to use, disclose, maintain, or transmit PHI in any
manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security
Rules. The Contractor shall provide Confidential Information as required
by the Contract, RSA 141-C:7, 141-C:9, RSA 141-C:10, and in a form
required by He-P 301.03 and the “New Hampshire Local Implementation
Guide for Electronic Laboratory Réporting for Communicable Disease
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2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

29

and Lead Test Results Using HL7 2.5.1,” Version 4.0 (5/23/2016), found
at: htips:.//www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/bphsi/documents/elrquide. pdf.

2.5.2. The Contractor shall transmit Confidential Information to the Division of
Public Health Services by means of a secure file transport protocol
(sFTP) provided by the Department and agreed to by the parties and
approved by the Department’s Information Security Officer.

2.5.3. The Contractor shall transmit the Confidential Information to the Division
of Public Health Services as required by statute and this Agreement,
namely:

2.5.3.1. Alltest resuits, including but not limited to positive and negative
results, shall be reported electronically via electronic laboratory
reporting procedures, also referred to as “ELR,” as noted
above.

2.5.3.2. Test results shall be provided within 24 hours of the test being
completed.

As necessary, the Contractor agrees to comply with any réquest to correct or
complete the data once transmitted to the Division of Public Health Services.

The Contractor agrees that the data submitted shall be the “minimum
necessary” to carry out the stated use of the data, as defined in the HIPAA
Privacy Rule and in accordance with all applicable confidentiality laws.

The parties agree that this Agreement shall be construed in accordance the
terms of Contract and governed by the laws of the State of New Hampshire.

The Contractor and the Department agree to negotiate. an amendment to
this Agreement as needed to address a Contract amendment, or any
changes in policy issues, fiscal issues, information security, and other
specific safeguards required for maintaining confidentiality of the data.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1.

3.2.

The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department showing that
the public is able to access COVID-19 testing, including, but not limited to:

3.1.1. Number of persons who received COVID-19 testing.

3.1.2. Number of persons assisted with enroliment in the Medicaid COVID-19
Testing benefit or other assistance program who received COVID-19
testing.

3.1.3. Number of persons for whom race and/or ethnicity is documented.
The Contractor shall ensure race and/or ethnicity demographic identifiers for

The Memorial Hospital at North Conway, N.H.  Exhibit B Contractor Initials gﬂ’""}
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the persons who received COVID-19 testing are collected consistently and
correctly, in accordance with best practice standards and processes as
provided by the Office of Heath Equity, and entered either manually or
electronically on the hospital or reference laboratory COVID-19 test requisition

forms.

4. Additional Terms
4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legisiative Changes

4.1.1.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith. '

4.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

4.2.1.

The Contractor shall submit within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, and comply with, a detailed description of the
communication access and language assistance services they will
provide- to ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or
services to persons with limited English proficiency, people who, are
deaf or have hearing loss, are blind or have low vision, or who have
speech challenges.

4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.31.

43.2.

4.3.3.

All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
malerials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, “The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds .provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.” '

All materials produced or purchased under the contract shali have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

The Depariment shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to: brochures,
resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters and reports.

The Memaorial Hospital at North Conway, N.H. Exhibit B Contractor Initials ! ‘é
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4.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior writlten approval from the Department. -

4.4.  Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

4.4.1. Inthe operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contraclor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at alf times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

5. Records ,
5.1.  The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
_evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received

or collected by the Contractor. )

5.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly refiect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Depariment to - obtain payment for such

l The Memorial Hospital at North Conway, N.H.  Exhibit B Contractor Initials ( ol
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services.
5.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

5.2.  During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shali terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor

FZi
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Payment Terms

- 1. This Agreement is funded by the Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for
Prevention and Control of Emerging Infectious Diseases (ELC) cooperative
agreement from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Division of
Prepardness and Emerging Infections, CFDA #93.323, FAIN #NU50CK000522.

2.  For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1, The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

22.- The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. This Agreement is for COVID-19 testing and testing-related activilies to be
conducted between August 1, 2020 and December 1, 2020.

4. Payment:

4.1. The Department will pay the Contractor the amount listed in box 1.8
Price Limitation included in the General Provisions Form Number P-37,
for providing the services included in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, after
the Effective Date of the Contract.

4.1.1. The Contractor shall submit an expense reporl in a form '
satisfactory to the State every sixty (60) days, which identifies
allowable expenses incurred during the duration of the contract.

4.1.2.  Any unspent start-up payment funds will be returned to the
Depariment within sixty (60) calendar days of contract
expiration date.

4.1.3. Inlieu of hard copies, all expense reports may be assigned an
electronic  signature and must be emailed to
dphscontractbilling@dhhs.nh.gov.

5. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

6.  The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be recouped, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

7. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their adtivities related to
Department-funded programs and services and have records available for
Department review, as requested.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be recouped, in whole or in part, in the event
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of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

9.  Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified. '

10. Audits

10.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

10.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

10.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

10.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

10.2.  If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Depariment within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

10.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

10.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

! @
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-630, Title V, Subtitie D: 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees 1o have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part li of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one cerlification to the Department in each federal fisca! year in lieu of cerificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Heallh and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to pravide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees far violation of such
prohibition; ’

1.2, Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.21.  The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; .
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4.  The penalties that may be imposed upan employees for drug abuse violations

) occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by Section 1.1.

1.4. Nofifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2.  Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviclion for a violation of a criminal drug

statute oceurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5, Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position titie, to every grant
officer on whose grant aclivity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

}
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has designated a centrat point for the receipt of such notices. Nolice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel aclion against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to parlicipate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
' rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the snte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, cily, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here,

Contractor Name:

Z /) /R0 /

Date Name: fT] cd’h 1S

Tme? <) cle FT{"
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Governmaent wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as idenlified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): :
*Temporary Assistance.to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title 1V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
‘Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behatf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewa, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor),

2. I any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal conlract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Slandard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l}

3. The undersigned shall require that:the language of this certification be inctuded in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
cerlification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name,

= /1//30) 777l
Date / Name: Acthwe © 1 1 Yot niSe. iy
Title: {resider—rt-
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees 1o have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections'1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. -By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospectwe primary participant is prowdlng the
cerlification set out below.

2. The inability of & person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospeclive participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The cerlification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Depariment of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The cerification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate, this transaction for cause or default,

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice 1o the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances, .

5. The terms "covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarity excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
aftached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntanfy excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitling this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A parlicipant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or inveluntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nanprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the cedification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Vendor Initials o
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person wha is
.suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addttion to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and betief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, dectared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal {contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
conneclion with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction: viclation of Federal or State antitrust
slatutes or commission of embezzlement, thefl, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
{(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this cerification; and : ’

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable o certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an exptanation to this proposal {contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. ‘By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposat (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposai (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled *Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in ell solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

“Vendor Name:

2/ /B0

Date

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension
, And Other Responsibility Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS .

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representalive as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
~ certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the dehvery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The.Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquancy Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.5.C. Section 5672{b}) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
stalute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Acl includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in-any program or aclivity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 784), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity:

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34}, which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal oppertunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transponation

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.5. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations), and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contracl Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or viclation of the cedification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. '

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, lo execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above,

Vendor Name:

2A 5

Date ~

o
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Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civit monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrées, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:
1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name:

A2 e

Date Name:  Artiogm 7Y Yo b e e
Title: : S"&agé'
]
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA] COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to execulive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more, If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award., i
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity

Amount of award

Funding agency

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

Program source

Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

Location of the entity

Principle place of performance

Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SPENOOL WD

o

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made. . o

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification: .

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:
Date N‘ame‘ﬁx—ﬂ\ué M e 15Em
‘ Title: - rcac:‘,c!e
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Exhibit J

FORMA .

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate,

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: {3 7’3"77 "7)753

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fisca! year, did your business or organization
receive {1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. faderal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants andfor
cooperalive agreements?

X NO ' YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
busmess or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)} or section 6104 of the Intermnal Revenue Code of
19867

NO ‘ YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name; : Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: _ Amount;
Name: Amount;

( aw
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information, * Breach”
shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

1
2. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce. :

3. “Confidential Information™ or “Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial Information
(PF1). Federal Tax Information (FT!), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCH), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portabitity and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. “Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to
a system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use
of a system for the processing or storage of dala; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss

Memorial Hospital July, 2020 Exhibit K Contractor Initials (d;
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" DHHS Information Security Requirements

or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open Wireless Network”™ means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network {designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for
the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. ‘Personal Information” (or *PI1") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personat
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal ar identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, efc.

9. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promuigated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

"~ 11. “"Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendmenits
thereto.

12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

{. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
excepl as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not

. use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Memorial Hospita! July, 2020 Exhibit K Contractor tnllials (ﬂ
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response 1o a request
for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure,

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant 1o the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of mspectlng to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

ll. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been
evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application's
encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
dala.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information,

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data,
the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL
encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Confidential
Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential
Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

aw’
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]
8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network. ‘

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed
on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol, If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure
the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.
SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-
hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

lll. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must: .

A. Retentiqn

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations,

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
lo detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide securily awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-

! 2 ‘
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hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewali protection. :

6. The Conltractor agrees to and ensures ils complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any securily vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure. :

8. Dispaosition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems {or its sub-
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30} days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, andfor stored in the delivery of contracted
services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,

I
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transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
' store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confldennar information
where applicable.

4. The Contraclor will ensure proper securily monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems andfor Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirernents that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Depariment system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system
access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement,

8. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor lo monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an allernate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may requeslt the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10, The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or ocutside the boundaries of the United States unless prior

express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office leadership
member within the Department.

! a0/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulling from the breach. To the extent
such breach is caused.by the actions or omissions of Contractor, the State shal!
recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from the breach,
including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs
associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach.

12. Contractor musl, comply with all applicable slatutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the
level and scope of requirements applicable lo federal agencies, including, but not
limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Acl
Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160
and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as
applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security thal is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technolagy. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Pracurement at_https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14, Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State’s Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI, This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or

" suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract
to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their
official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

! QE
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

¢. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, P, or PFI
are encrypted and password-prolected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information.

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Informaticon to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable. information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored

on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.,

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS:
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in aécordance with this Contract.

V. LOSSREPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State’s Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency’'s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Conatractor will:

1. Identify incidents;
2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

A
. ¢
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements '

3." Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach nofification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl mus! be addressed and reporied, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

vl PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

Memofial Hospital July, 2020 Exhibil K Contracior Initials g%w
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Suate of the Siate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. is a New Hampshirc Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on
August 30, 1910. | further centify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrctary of State’s office have been reccived and is

in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 61784
Centificate Number: 0004846430

[N TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

| hercio sct my hand and cause to be aftixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this | 8th day of March A.D. 2020.

Gon ok

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Statc
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Memorial Hospital
MaineHealth

August 6, 2020

State of NH

Attn: Contracts and Procurement Unit
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

To Whom It May Concern:

Please accept this letter as verification that the attached Corporate Resolution effective June 1, 2020
granting Arthur Mathisen, President, the authority to execute agreements and contracts on behalf of
Memorizal Hospital continues to be in full force and effect, and has not been revoked.

S
Sincerely,

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

;"Lfatz,, y2 bn/ Bt~

Mlary DeVeau
Chair, Board of Trustees

3073 Whitc Mountain Highway, North Conway, NH 03860 + 603-356-5461 = www.McemorialHospitalNH.org



THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

Resolved, that effective on the 1&1 of June, 2020, Arthur Mathisen, President, and Diana
McLaughlin, Chief Financial Officer, of Memorial Hospital are hereby authorized and
directed to execute and deliver lease agreements and contracts on behalf of Memorial

Hospital and its subsidiaries under its corporate seal.

[, Mary DeVeau, Chair of the Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital incorporated under
the laws of the State of New Hémpshire, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy
of Resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of said corporation at a meeting
duly held on the 17th day of June, 2020, at which a quorum was present and voting,h and
that the same has not been repealed or amended and remains in full force and effect and

does not conflict with the by-laws of said corporation.

| ,7%@ N/

Mary DeVeau, Board of Trustees Chair Date

6/17/2020

(Corporate Seal)
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE {MMDOVYYYY}
08/05/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS 1SSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: H tha certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy{ies) must be endarsed.

if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER jﬁ'ﬂg‘“
Medical Mutual Insurance Company of Maine FPHONE _ 2077752791 I TAX nop. 2075238320
One City Center PO Box 15275 ADORESS:
Poriland, ME 04112 INSURER(S] AFFORDING CQVERAGE NAIC #
insurer 4 : Medical Mutual Ins Co of Maine
INSURED . INSURER © ; -
Memorial Hospital INSURER € :
3073 White Mountain Highway INSURER B :
INSURERE :
North Conway NH (3860 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERICD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WATH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS,
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ASOLTSUBR
iy TYPE OF INSURANCE mn__guuvn POLICY NUMBER m’i’&%%}’v%% p:a"ro%z} ELILE] '
COMMERCLA NERAL LIABILITY .
A | X | COUMERGIAL GENERAL LABIL NH HPL 004270 10/01/2019/10/01/2020 EACHoccurrence | 2.000,000
CLAIMS-MADE El OCCUR : s 100,000
| MED EXP {Any cne person) | $ 5,000
— PERSONAL £ ADV INJURY | § 2,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE umr APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 3 4,000,000
_ | roucy [:] e D Log PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | 3 2,000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
 AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY oD s
|| anvauro , BODILY INJURY {Par parson) | $
ALL QWNED SCHEDULED ;
v oen BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
NON-OWNED BROPERTY DANAGE .
|| HireD auTOS AUTOS (Paf accident)
s
|| umsrELLA LIAB occuR EACH OCCURRENCE s -
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE L]
oo | | mevenmions s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER oTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN staryre | | €7
ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L EACHAGCIDENT 3
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA
{Mandatory i NH) E.L, DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] $
H s, dosCribe under
DESERIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | 3
A |Professional Liability NH HPL 004270 10/01/2019110/01/20201 $2,000,000/$4,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACQRD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If mors space i3 required)

Evidence of Coverage

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Depariment of Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

,Concord, NH 03301

SHOULO ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRES

et B c;ﬁ-"'*-

ACORD 25 {2013/04)

© 1988-2013 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Memorial Hospital
MaineHealth

Mission Statement

Memorial Hospital is committed to meeting the health needs of the Mt. Washington Valley and
surrounding communities by serving with our community partners in the provision of
accessible, comprehensive, compassionate, and quality healthcare.

Through the strategic planning process, Memorial Hospital identified the following strategic
priorities:

Workforce Development & Engagement

Quality improvement & Patient Experience

Population Health & Wellness

Financial Performance N
Service Delivery Transformation

(P Ve S

3073 Whitc Mountain Highway, North Conway, NH 03860 » 603-356-5461 « www.McmorialHospitalNH.org



Art Mathisen
Mary Vigeant, APRN -
Rich Petersen

Becky Adams
01/01/2020
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Memorial

/\

BOARD OFFICERS

Hospital
MaineHealth

Board Chair: Mary DeVeau
Vice Chair:  Robert Irwin
Secretary: Michelle O'Donnell
Treasurer: Edward Kelly
Past Chair: Laura Jawitz

BOARD OF TRUSTEES ROSTER

Name & Email Address Term> | Term
‘ Thru | Limit
Ray, Corinne 2021 11/27
corinne@rayrealtynh.com
Kelly, Ed 2021 11/23
ed@ewkelly.com
O’Donnell, Michelie 2021 11/23
annewilliamsodonnell@gmail.com
DeVeau, Mary 2022 11/25
mhbdeveau@gmail.com
Irwin, Bob 2022 11/25
BobirwinS6@gmail.com
Terry, Linda 2022 11/28
Lmt06070@aol.com
Scott, Tim 2022 11/28
tgscott@countryconsultinggroup.com
Chase, Zack 2023 11/29
zchase@memorialhospitalnh.org
. HONORARY TRUSTEE(S)
" | Name & Email Address ‘ Term | Term:
' | 'start | Limit. _
Jawite, Laura 12/19 | N/A
ljawitz@hotmail.com

President — Ex Officio
Medical Staff President — Ex Officio
MaineHealth President — Ex Officio

Executive Assistant

amathisen@memorialhospitalnh.org
mvigeant@memoriathospitalnh.org
richard.petersen@mainehealth.org

badamsl@memorialhospitalnh.org

Memorial Hospital » 3073 White Mountain Highway - North Conway, NH 03860

603-356-5461

www.MemogrialHospitalNH.org




- The Memorial HospitalA at
North Conway, N.H. and Subsidiaries

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
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Baker Newman & Noyes LLC
MAINE | MASSACHUSETTS | NEW HAMPSHIRE
800.244.7444 | www.bnncpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
The Memorial Hospital at North Conway, N.H.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Memorial Hospital at North
Conway, N.H. and Subsidiaries ("the Hospital") which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30, 2019 and 2018, the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net asscts and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively, the
financial statements). ’

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur respensibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of

 the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.



Board of Trustees
The Memorial Hospital at North Conway, N.H.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financia! .
position of the Hospital as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, the results of its operations, changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matters
As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2019, the Hospital adopted the provisions
of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and ASU

2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements _for Not-for-Praofit Entities. Qur opinion is not modified with
respect to these matters,

bpkin Mourmam, + N> LLC

Portland, Maine
February 7, 2020



THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

September 30, 2019 and 2018
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments (notes 4 and 5)
Patient accounts receivable (notes 3 and 8)
Due from Maine Healthcare and other member organizations
Other receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Investments whose use is limited by (notes 4 and 5):
Specific purpose funds :
- Board designated funds
Funds functioning as endowment
Total investments whose use is limited

Property, plant and equipment, net (notes 6 and 8)

Other assets (note 7)

Total assets

2019 2018’
$ 8,727,158 $16,243,053
16,318,143 10,077,605
9,133,057 9,791,792
32,0397 -
452,942 272,450
2422314 2,039,482
461,693 248.512
37,547,346 18,672,894
459,818 386,141
20,346,097 20,387,703
663,823 613,823
21,469,738 21,387,667
32,891,886 33,521,170
10,092,356 4,508,855
$102,001,326 $98,090,386



LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities: _
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages and related amounts
Accrued earned time
Accrued interest
Estimated third-party payor settlements (note 3)
Deferred revenue
‘Due to Maine Healthcare and other member

organizations (note 13)

Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion (note 8)
Amounts payable to affiliated entities (note 14)
Other long-term liabilities (note 12)
Total liabilities
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions (note 9}

" Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2019 2018
$ 1,586,051 $ 2,070,071
996,063 1,407,939
1256570 1,147,589
243,921 252,408
15,110,551 15,275,348
136,465 278,234
2,399,636 2,406,815
814.061 775,277
22,543,318 23,613,676
14,207,119 15,052,240
4831,150 2,503,384
4387231 1,197,068
45,968,818 42,366,368
54,908,867 54,724,254
1,123,641 999.964
56,032,508  55.724.218
$102,001,326 $98.090,386

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Revenue and other support without donor restrictions:

Patient service revenue $74,898,493 372,744,366

Assets released from restriction for operations 138,499 212,426

Other revenue (note 2) ' 2,856,109 2,378,298

Total revenue and other support without donor restrictions 77,893,101 75,335,090

Expenses (notes 11 and 13):

Salaries and wages . 30,594,065 29,121,190

Employee benefits (note 2) 7,692,909 7,311,247

Supplies 9,969,491 11,171,148

Professional fees and purchased services 16,826,999 15,190,272

Facility and other costs 3,667,031 3,338,377

State taxes (note 3) 3,276,960 3,138,984

Interest (note &) ' 886,922 837,448

Depreciation and amortization (notes 6 and 7) 4815931 3980416

’ 3
Total expenses 77,730,308  74,089.082

Income from operations 162,793 1,246,008
Nonoperating gains (losses):

Gifts and donations without donor restrictions 35 817

Investment income (note 4) 475,161 317,572

Recognized (loss) gain in fair value of investments (note 4) (189,189) 1,639,523

Gain (loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment 638 {64.8377)

286,645 1,893,035

Excess of revenue over expenses o $__449438 $_3,139.043

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Revenue and other support without donor restrictions:
Excess of revenue over expenses
Change in unrealized loss on investments (note 4)
Net assets released from restriction
for property, plant and equipment
Equity transfer to Maine Healthcare (note 13)

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions:
Gifts and donations
Net assets released from restriction for operations
Net assets released from restriction for
property, plant and equipment
Increase (decrease) in net assets with donor restrictions
Increase in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

2019 2018
$ 449,438 § 3,139,043
- (415,965)
27,540 63,515

(292.365) (270.088)
184,613 2,516,505

289,716 230,170
(138,499) {212,426)

(27,540) (63,515}

123,677 (45,771}

308,290 2,470,734

55724218 53,253,484

$30.032.008 $33.724.218

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets
Adjustment to reconcile increase in net assets 10
net cash (used) provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Accretion of bond issuance cost and premium, net

Transfer to Maine Healthcare

Recognized loss (gain) on investmenis

Restricted contributions and income

Increase (decrease) in cash resulting from a change in’
Patient accounts receivable
Other receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Other assets
Estimated third-party payor settiements
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and accrued interest
Accrued salaries, wages and related amounts
Accrued earned time
Deferred revenue
Other long-term liabilities :
Due to MaincHealth and other member organizations

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
(Gain) loss on sale of property, plant and equiprment
Proceeds from sale of investments
Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from note payable to MaineHealth
Repayments of long-term debt
Repayment on capital lease obligations
Restricted contributions and income
Transfer to MaineHealth
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest

2019

2018

$ 308,290 $ 2,470,734

3,980,416

4,815,931
(23,452) (23,453)
292,365 . 270,088
189,189 (1,223,558)

(289,716) (230,170)
658,735 1,458,714
(180,492) (95,198)
(382,832) 66,648
(213,181) 278,378
(6,764,948)  (3,301,028)
(164,797) 1,997,823
(492,507) 101,174
(411,876) 662,351
108,981 (242,868)
(141,769) (4,491)
3,190,163 392,715
(1.026.909) 758,178
(528,825) 7,316,453
(6,511,798)  (12,773,492)
(3,007,596)  (3,280,462)
3,034 —
(638) 64,877
- 4,931,052
(9,516,998)  (11,058,025)
3,315,457 2,666,051
(613,919) (584,468)
(168,961) (144,876)
289,716 230,170
(292.365) (270.088)
2,529,928 1.896.789
(7,515,895)  (1,844,783)
16243053  _18,087.836

$_8.727.158 $.16.243.033

870445 §_868.568

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 20138

Reporting Entity
Organization

The Memorial Hospital at North Conway, N.H. (the Hospital) is a nonprofit hospital which provides
acute care and long-term care services Lo residents of North Conway and the surrounding communities.
The Memorial Hospital Foundation (the Foundation) was organized during 2014 for charitable purposes
to act exclusively for the benefit of the Hospital. Memorial Elder Health Services (MEHS) was
organized during 2017 to serve the long-term care needs of the community. MEHS began operations in
2019. The Hospital is the sole member of the Foundation and MEHS. .

The Hospital is a subsidiary of MaineHealth Services {(formerly name MaineHealth) located in Portiand,
Maine, which is an integrated health care delivery system serving southern, western and central Maine,
and east central New Hampshire.

The subsidiaries of MaineHealth Services include MaineHealth, NorDx, MaineHealth Care at Home,
and The Memorial Hospital of N. H. The subsidiary MaineHealth, whose former legal name was Maine
Medical Center, includes eight acute care hospitals that were formally individual entities until the
execution of a unification merger effective January 1, 2019. These hospitals are now local health
systems within the subsidiary named MaineHealth utilizing DBAs of Maine Medical Center, Southern
Maine Health Care, LincolnHealth, Western Maine Healthcare (Stephens Memorial Hospital), Franklin
Community Health Network (Franklin Memorial Hospital), Maine Behavioral Healthcare, and Coastal
Healthcare Alliance (Waldo County General Hospital and Pen Bay Medical Center). The merger enables
the combined resources of the merging entities to be allocated in a manner that is consistent with the -
system’s mission of helping make the communities it serves the healthiest in America.

MaineHealth Services, together with its controlled subsidiaries MaineHealth and the Memorial Hospital
at North Conway, N.H., maintained a controlling interest in Mainelealth Accountable Care

Organization, LLC (MaineHealth ACQ), a valued based contracting entity.

All activity with these other entities is disclosed as activity with other member organizations.

Significant Accounting Policies .

The accounting policies that affect the more significant elements of the financial sltatements are
summarized below:

Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the Hospital, MEHS and the Foundation,

which are collectively referred to as the "Hospital" herein.  All material intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most significant areas
which are affected by the use of estimates are patient accounts receivable and estimated third-party payor
settlements,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all demand deposit accounts, short-term money market accounts and
certificates of deposit with original maturities of three months or less, excluding cash within investments
and amounts classified as investments whose use is limited.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are
written off.

Prior to October 1, 2018, management of the Hospital and its affiliates provided for probable
uncollectable accounts through a charge to the provision for bad debts and a credit to a valuation
allowance based on its assessment of individual accounts and historical adjustments. Under the
provisions of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracis with
Customers, which was adopted effective October 1, 2018, when the Hospital has an unconditional right
to payment, subject only to the passage of time, the nght is treated as a receivable. Patient accounts
receivable, inctuding billed accounts and unbilled accounts for which there is an unconditional right to
payment, and estimated amounts due from third-party payors for retroactive adjustments, are receivables
if the right to consideration is unconditional and only the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due. For patient accounts receivable subsequent to the adoption of ASU 2014-09
on October 1, 2018, the estimated uncollectable amounts are generally considered implicit price
concessions that are a direct reduction to patient accounts receivable rather than allowance for doubtful
accounts.
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Significant Accounting Policies

Investments

The fair value topic of the Accounting Standards Codification {ASC) defines fair value as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaciion between market
participants at the measurement date (an exit price). Under GAAP, certain assets and liabilities must be
measured at fair value, and disclosures are required for items measured at fair value. Entities may elect
to report financial instruments and certain other items at fair value on a contract-by-contract basis with
changes in value reported in the excess of revenue over expenses. The Hospital elected to exclude the
change in fair value, and unrealized gains and losses, from the excess of revenue over expenses for
investments and investments whose use is limited purchased prior to 2017. Throughout 2018 the existing
investment portfolio was sold and new investments held by Maine Medical Center were purchased. At
September 30, 2019 and 2018, investments and investments whose use is limited in the amount of
336,577,864 and 330,386,778, respectively, were held by Maine Medical Center and the related change
in fair value is reflected in the excess of revenue over expenses. The change in unrealized gains and
losses decreased $4 15,965 in 2018 as a result of the sale of investments purchased prior to 2017. This
decrease is included in the increase in net assets without donor restrictions.

Investments are measured at fair value on the balance sheet. Investment income, including realized gains
and losses on investments, interest and dividends, is included in the excess of revenue over expenses
unless the income is restricted by donor or law. Gains and losses on sales of investments are computed
based on specific identification of the investment sold.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market
volatility. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments will occur in the
near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the balance sheets,
statements of operations, and changes in net assets.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost (determined by the first-in, first-out method) or net realizable
value.

Investments Whose Use is Limited

Investments whose use is limited primarily includes designated investients set aside by the Board of
Trustees for future capital improvements over which the Board retains control and may at its discretion
subsequently use for other purposes. In addition, investments whose use is limited include investments
restricted by donors for specific purposes or periods, as well as investments restricted by donors to be
held in perpetuity by the Hospital, and the related appreciation on those investments. Amounls required
to meet current liabilities of the Hospital have been classified as current assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant -and equipment are recorded at cost. The carrying value is reviewed if the facts and
circumstances suggest that it may be impaired. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life
of cach class of depreciable assets and is computed vsing the straight-line method. Equipment under
capital lease obligations is amortized on the straight-line method over the shorter period of the lease term
or the estimated useful life of the equipment. Such amortization is included in depreciation and
amaortization in the accompanying financial statements. Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during
the period of construction of capital assets are capitalized as a component of acquiring those assets.

Gifis of long-lived assets such as land, buildings or equipment are reported as increases in net assets

without doner restrictions and are excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses. Gifts of long-
lived assets with explicit restictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as net assets with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulation about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations
of denor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Nel assets with donor restrictions are those subject to stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some
donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Hospital or by
the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated
the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor-Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Hospital are reported at fair value at the date
the promise is received. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions are
substantially met. The gifts are reported as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations
that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified
as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of operations as net assets released
from restriction.

Income From Operations

Revenue which is related to patient medical care and which is normai to day-to-day operations of the
Hospital is included in operating income.  Activities thal result in gains and losses unrelated to the
Hospital's primary mission are considered to be nonoperating. Nonoperating gains and losses include
gifts and donations, return on investments and other miscellaneous amounts.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The accompanying statements of operations include excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in net
assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from excess of revenue over expenses include
equity transfers to MaineHealth, certain changes in unrealized gains or losses on investments and
contributions for long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions, which by donor
restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets).

Patient Service Revenue

Effective October 1, 2018 upon the adoption of ASU 2014-09, accounting policies were revised and
patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reftects the consideration to which the Hospital
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients, third-
party payors (including health insurers and government programs), and others and include variable
consideration (reductions to revenue) for retroactive revenue adjustments due o settlement of ongoing
and future audits, reviews, and invesiigations.

The Hospital uses a portfolio approach to account for categories of patient contracts as a collective group
rather than recognizing revenue on an individual contract basis. The portfolios primarily consist of major
types of payors. Based on historical collection trends and other analyses, the Hospital believes that
revenue recognized by utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have been
recognized if an individual contract approach were used.

Charity Care

The Hospital accepts all patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient qualifies for free care based
upon certain established policies of the Hospital. These policies define free care as those services for
which no payment is anticipated. Free care provided is not included in patient service revenue. Costs
and expenses incurred in providing these services are included in operating expenses.

Meaningful Use

The Hospital has implemented Electronic Health Record Technology (EHR) effective December 1,
2018. The Hospital qualified and applied for meaningful use incentive payments from Medicare and
Medicaid- related to the implemeniation of EHR as provided for under the Health [nformation
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act. As a result, the Hospital recognized $72,250 of other
revenue associated with these payments for the year ended September 30, 2018. There were no amounts
recognized in 2019.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Employee Benefit Plan

The Hospitai has a tax-sheliered annuity ptan under which contributions can be made into the plan by
all employees. The Hospital makes contributions to the plan, computed at a percentage of yearly
earnings, for eligible employees with one year of service. Hospital contributions charged to operations
amounted to $601,192 and $543,603 during the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
This plan was terminated on January 2, 2019 and all assets were either distributed from the plan to
participants or transferred to the MaineHealth 403(b) Retirement Plan. All future contributions will be
contributed to the MaineHealth 403(b) Retirement Plan,

Accretion/Amortization

Bond premi{lms are accreted over the term of the bonds using a method approximating the effective
interest method. Bond issuance costs and intangibles are amortized using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives.

Income Taxes

The Hospital and its subsidiaries are not-for-profit corporations and have been recognized as tax-exempt
pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a
tax position they have historically 1aken on various lax exposure items inciuding unrelated business
income or tax status. Under guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB),
assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions taken or positions expected (o be taken in
income tax retumns when such positions are judged to not meet the "more-likely-than-not" threshold,
based upon the technical merits of the position. Estimated interest and penalties, if applicable, related
1o uncertain tax positions are included as a component of income tax expense.

The Hospital has evaluated the position taken on its filed tax returns. The Hospital has concluded no
uncertain income tax positions exist at September 30, 2019,

Subsequent Events

Events occurring after the balance sheet date are evaluated by management to determine whether such
events should be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements. Management has evaluated
subsequent events through February 7, 2020 which is the date the financial statements were available to
be issued. .



THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue
Jrom Contracts with Customers, which replaces most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and is intended to improve and converge with
international standards the financial reporting requirements for recognizing revenue from contracts with
customers. The core principle of ASU 2014-09 is that an entity should recognize revenue for the ransfer

_of goods or services equal to the amount that it expects to be entitled to receive for those goods or
services. ASU 2014-09 also requires additional disclosures about the nature, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in
judgments. Effective October 1, 2018, the Hospital has elected the full retrospective application for the
adoption of the guidance to all contracts under scope of the guidance and there was no material impact
to the Hospilal related to its existing revenue streams. Periods prior to adoption have been displayed to
conform to the net presentation of a single patient service revenue total in the consolidated statements of
operations. Previously, the period ended Séptember 30, 2018 included separate lines for patient revenue
prior to provision for bad debts of $78,246,143, provision for bad debts of $5,501,777, and net patient
service revenue less provision for bad debts of $72,744,366. The related presentation of "allowances for
doubtful accounts” on the consolidated balance sheets has also been eliminated as a result of the adoption
of the standard.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) (ASU 2016-14) ~
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity
and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and
availability of resources, and the tack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses
and investment return. ASU 2016-14 is effective for the Hospital for the year ended September 30, 2019.
The Hospital has adjusted the presentation of these statements and related footnotes accordingly. The
ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods presented. Previously, the consolidated balance
sheets displayed temporarily restricted net assets of $386,141 and permanently restricted net assets of
$613,823.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the
Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The Hospital
has elected to early adopt ASU 2018-08 for the year ended September 30, 2019 and has applied the
standard on a modified prospective basis. The amendments in this update assists entities in
(1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounts for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions)
with the scope of Topic 958, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other guidance and
(2) determining. whether a contribution is conditional. The application of the guidance did not have a
material impact on the consolidated financial stalements.
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Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

- Prospective Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 8§42) (ASU 2016-02). Under ASU
2016-02, at the commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to the
discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset. ASU
2016-02 is effective for the Hospital on October 1, 2019, with ‘early adoption permitted. Lessees (for
capital and operating leases) must apply a modified retrospectivé transition approach for leases existing
at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial
statements. The modified retrospective approach would not require any transition accounting for leases
that expired before the earliest comparative period presented. Lessees may not apply a full retrospective

- transition approach. The Hospital 1s currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of ASU

2016-02 on the financial statements.

Patient Service Revenue

In May 2014, the FASB issued a new standard related to revenue recognition. The Hospital adopted the
new standard effective October 1, 2018, using the full retrospective method. The adoption of the new
standard did not have an impact on the recognition of revenues for any periods prior to adoption. The
most significant impact of adopting the new standard is the presentation of the consolidated statements
of operations, where the "provision for bad debt”" is no longer presented as a separate line item and "net
patient service revenue” is presented net of estimated implicit price concession revenue deductions. The -
related presentation of "allowances for doubtful accounts” has also been eliminated from the
consolidated balance sheets as a result of the adoption of the new standard.

Revenues generally relale to contracts with patients in which the Hospital's performance obligations are
to provide health care services to patients. Revenues are recorded during the period obligations to
provide health care services are satisfied. Performance obligations for inpatient services are generally
satisfied over a period of days. Performance obligations for outpatient services are generally satisfied
over a period of less than one day. The contractual relationships with patients, in most cases, also involve
a third-party payor (Medicare, Medicaid, managed care health plans and commercial insurance
companies, including plans offered through the health insurance exchanges) and the transaction prices
for the services provided are dependent upon the terms provided by Medicare and Medicaid or negotiated
with managed care health plans and commercial insurance companies, the third-party payors. The
payment arrangements with third-party payors for the services provided to related patients typically
specifies payments at amounts less than standard charges. Medicare generally pays for inpatient and
outpatient services at prospectively determined rates based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors.
Services provided to patients having Medicaid coverage are generally paid at prospectively determined
rates, per discharge, per identified service or per covered member. Agreements with commercial
insurance carriers, managed care and preferred provider organizations generally provide for payments
based upon predetermined rates per diagnosis, per diem rates or discounted fee-for-service rates.
Management continually revicws the revenue recognition process to consider and incorporate updates
to laws and regulations and the frequent changes in managed care contractual terms resulting from
contract renegotiations and renewals.
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Paticnt Service Revenue (Continued)

Revenues are based upon estimated amounts that the Hospital expects to be entitled to receive from
patients and third-party payors. Revenues under managed care and commercial insurance plans are
based upon the payment terms specified in the related contractual agreements. Revenues related to
uninsured patients and uninsured copayment and deductible amounts for patients who have health care
coverage may have discounts applied (uninsured discounts and contractual discounts) and the recorded
revenue is based primarily on historical collection experience.

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Hospital at
amounts different from its established rates. A summary of payment arrangements with major third-
party payors is as follows:

Medicare and Medicaid Programs - The Hospital converted to a critical access hospital (CAH) on
November 1, 2004. CAHs are paid based upon cost for most Medicare services. Medicaid acute care
services are paid based on a prospectively determined fixed price depending on the type of illness or the
patient's diagnostic-related group classification. The Hospital is reimbursed based upon cost for
Medicaid outpatient services. The Hospital receives payment for Medicare and Medicaid inpatient and
outpatient services on a reasonable cost basis, which is settled with retroactive adjustments upon
completion and audit of related cost reports. The Hospital's cost reports have been audited and settled
through June 30, 2011 for Medicare and Medicaid.

Laws and regulations governing the Medlcare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. The Hospital believes that it is in compliance with all laws and regulations, and is not
aware of any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While
no such regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject
to future government review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines,
penaltics and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. As a result, there is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term.
Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become
known. The differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined
to be recoverable from third-party payors increased patient service revenue by approximately $203,000
and $980,000 during the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Revenues for all
patient services from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 47% and 51%
of the Hospital's patient service revenue for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Medicaid disproportionate share hospital (DSH) payments provide financial assistance to hospitals that
serve a large number of low-income patients. The federal government distributes federal DSH funds to
each state based on a slatutory formula. The states, in turn, distribute their portion of the DSH funding
among qualifying hospitals. The states are 1o use their federal DSH allotments to help cover costs of
hospitals that provide care to low-income patients when those costs are not covered by other payors.
The State of New Hampshire's distribution of DSH monies to the hospitals is subject to audit by the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). Amounts recorded by the Hospital are therefore
subject to change. The Hospital estimated and recorded the impact of DSH settlements for the years
subject to audit from fiscal year 2012 through September 30, 2019. The disproportionate share payments
amounted 10 $6,227,555 and $4,872,295 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respeclively,
and are recorded as an increase in patient service revenue.
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Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

The Hospital pays a patient service revenue tax of 5.5%, which amounted to $3,090,513 and $2,937,914
for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which are recorded as operating
expenses. In addition, the Hospital paid $186,447 and $201,070 in resident service revenue tax for the
years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Nongovernmental Payors - The Hospital also maintains contracts with Blue Cross and various other
payors, which pay the Hospital for services based on charges with varying discounts.

Uninsured Patienis - The Hospital does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity
care; therefore they are not reported as net revenues.

The Hospital has a formal chanty care policy under which patient care is provided 10 patients who meet
certain criteria without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The Hospital rendered charity
care in accordance with its formal charity care policy, which, at established charges, amounted to
$1,147,284 and $1,122,810 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
estimated cost of charity includes the direct and indirect cost of providing charity care services, offset
by revenues received from financial assistance donations. The cost is estimated by utilizing a ratio of
cost to gross charges applied to the gross uncompensated charges associated with providing charity care.
The cost of charity care provided amounted to $624,126 and $599,337 for the years ended September 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively. There were no donations received to offset charity services provided for
the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018.

The Hospital provides 100% free care to anyone whose income falls below 175% of the federal poverty
level. In addition, the Hospital offers a self-pay discount for patients who are uninsured.

Patient service revenues by payor are as follows for the years ended September 30:

2019 2018
Medicare $29,069,528 327,711,756
Medicaid ‘ 12,295,099 10,288,164
Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield 11,180,617 6,496,922
Other third-party payors 14913497 25,274,710
Patients 7,439,752 2972814
Patient service revenue 574,898,493 §$72.744,366
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Investments Whose Use is Limited

The composition of investments whose use is limited as well as the composition of those investments at

September 30 are set forth in the following table:

[nvestments — current assets
Investments whose use is limited

The composition of investments is as follows at September 30:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents held by Maine Medical Center

Pooled investments held by Maine Medical Center

2019 2018
$16,318,143  $10,077,605
21469738  21:387,667
SILIS7.381 $3l405.272
/

2019 2018
$ 1,210,017 $ 1,078,494
16,318,143 10,076,522
20259721 20,310,256
SILIS7.881 $3L462.272

Investments whose use is limited include amounts restricted by donors as well as amounts designated

by the Board.

Maine Medical Center invests certain assets on behalf of the Hospital. Maine Medical Center invests
the amount in a pooled investment fund and allocates the return from the investment pool to the Hospital.
The investment pool is invested in a variety of investments and amounts are available to the Hospital on

demand.

Pooled investments held at Maine Medical Center coﬁsist of the following at September 30, 2019:

U.S. equity

Global equity
Emerging markets
Marketable alternatives
Bonds

Marketable hard assets

25%
26
10
19
14

Investment income and {losses) gains consisted of the following for the years ended September 30:

Interest and dividends, net of expenses
Recognized (losses) gains on investinents

2019 2018
$ 475,161 § 317,572
(189.189) 1.223,558

5.285.072 $.L34L130
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

GAARP has established a fair value hierarchy that results in ¢lassification of assets and liabilities within
three different levels. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value are classified and disclosed in
one of the following three categories:
Level 1 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for-market
transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Valuations for assets and liabilities not based on.market exchange transactions are
classified as Level 3. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions in determining the fair
value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

In determining the appropriate levels, the Hospital performs a detailed analysis of the assets that are
subject 10 fair value measurements.

The following tables present the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value at September 30
on a recurring basis:

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

2019
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,210,017 § - $ - $ 1,210,017
Investments held by Maine Medical Center = 36,577,864 - 36,577.864

51210017 $36.577.8364 S.—_ S$3L787.881
2018
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,078494 § - $ - $ 1,078,494
Investments held by Maine Medical Center - 30,386,778 - 30,386,778

$ 1078494 $30386778 $_—_ 331463272
Investments held by Maine Medical Center are classified as Level 2,

The Hospital's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments, assets limited as
to use, trade accounts receivable and payable, amounts receivable from and payable to third-party
reimbursing agencies, a capital lease obligation, and long-term debt. The fair value of investments is
primarily based on the market prices of the underlying assets. The fair values of all other financial
instruments approximate their carrying values at September 30, 2019 and 201 8.



THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2019 and 2018

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following at September 30:

2019 2018
Land and land improvements $ 7538774 $ 7,337,097
Buildings and improvements 52,663,659 51,939,371
Equipment 30,262,865 28,687,908

Construction in progress 307,357 1,268,118

90,772,655 89,232,494
Less accumulated depreciation (57,.880.769) {55.711.324)

532801836 $.23.32L.170
Depreciation expense for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $4,035,762 and $3,643,063,

respectively. .

The cost of assets recorded under capital leases totaled $816,145 at September 30, 2019 and 2018. The
cost of these assets has been included with property, plant and equipment and accumulated amortization
with allowances for depreciation. Amortization expense for assets under capital lease was $153,319 and
$155,271 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and has been included with
depreciation expense in the accompanying financial statements. Accumulated amortization associated
with the lease totaled $524,230 and $370,911 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following at September 30:

2019 2018
Estimated insurance recoveries $ 3,550800 $ 479,600
Investment in MaineHealth Accountable Care Organization, LLC 186,175 135,909
SeHR and systemwide assets 6,187,282 3,838,911
SeHR debt service reserve fund 168.099 54,435

$10.002,356 $4,308,853

MaineHealth established an information systems project, known as the SeHR (Shared electronic Health
Record) Project, that will implement a systemwide integrated electronic health record system and
financial system. The SeHR Prgject is an integrated suite of technology solutions to support the
healthcare delivery for MaineHealth members, providers and the communities MaineHealth serves.
initial funding for the Project was drawn from cash reserves held by MaineHealth and many of the
subsidiary members.
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Other Assets {Continued)

The cost of assets recorded through this project consist of the following at September 30:

2019 2018
SeHR Project software costs $6,221,782 $3,476,543
Systemwide assets 914,543 684,561

7,136,325 4,161,104

Accumulated amortization (949.043) (322.193)

$6.182.282 54838901

Amortization expense for these assets was $626,850 and $182,082 for the years ended September 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included in depreciation--and amortization expense in the
accompanying financial statements.

The Hospital's allocated portion of the SeHR expenditure is estimated to be $8.7 million. Through 2019,

the Hospital has paid MaineHealth approximately $792,000, and financed approximately $6,000,000
through a note payable (see Note 14).

Long-Term Debt

Long-terin debt consists of the following at September 30:

]
O
o]
2]

The Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 with a variable interest
rate ranging from 4.0% to 5.50% per vear and required principal
payments ranging from $430,000 to $1,175,000 through June 1.
2036 513,500,000 $13,985,000

TD Bank loan with an interest rate of 3.52% per year and required
monthty payments of $7,556 of principal plus interest through
October 31, 2025. The remaining principal balance plus interest

Y

will be due at the maturity date on September 8, 2025 862,872 991,791
Capital lease obligations 281.402 450,363
14,644,274 15,427,154
Unamortized premium 790,289 837,705
Unamortized deferred issuance costs (413.383) {437,347)
15,021,180 15,827,512
Less current portion {814.061) (775.272)

$14.207,119 $13.052,240
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THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

In December 2016, the Authority issued tax-exempt revenue bonds for the Memorial Hospital Issue,
Series 2017, totaling $14,875,000. The Series 2016 Bonds, together with other available funds were
issued to refund the Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 and to pay certain costs incurred in
connection with the issuance of the Series 2016 Bonds. These bonds were issued under the Master Trust
- Indenture for The Memorial Hospital at North Conway, N.H. and Memorial Hospital Foundation of
North Conway, Inc., as an Obligated Group.

Under the terms of the loan agreement, the Hospital has granted the Authority a security interest in its
gross receipts and equipment, and a mortgage lien on the facility. In addition, under the terms of the
bond indenture and loan agreement, the Hospital is required to meet certain covenant requirements. The
Hospital was in compliance with these loan covenants at September 30, 2019 and 2018.

Deferred financing costs of $413,383 and $437,347 in 2019 and 2018, respectively, are reported as a
component of long-term debt and represent the costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the bonds.
These costs are being amortized over the terms of the bonds, Amortization expense for the years ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018, was $23,964 and is included in interest expense. The original issue premium
is accreted over the term of the related bonds using the effective interest method.

Interest paid totaled $871,445 and $868,568 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Scheduled maturities for the next five years and thereafter of outstanding debt at September 30, 2018 are
“as follows:

Capital Bonds
Lease and
Obligation Notes
2020 $182,335 § 643,531
2021 , 109,154 673,308
2022 6,043 708,256
2023 ' - 743,381
2024 - 778,689
Thereafter - 10,815,707
297,532 $]4,362.872
Less amounts representing interest under capital leases (16.130)
$281.402
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THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes and consist of the following
at September 30:

2019 2018
Purpose restriction: '
Equipment $ 15983 § 10,702
Community health and wellness 217,571 153,502
Diabetes education and assistance 90,379 126,322
Other 135,885 95,115

459,818 386,141

Perpetual in nature:
Income on which is restricted to provide charity care 663,823 613,823

SLl23.041 $229.964

The Hospital has adopted an investment policy that is diversified with the objective of providing income
and growth over the long term. Investment accounts exist to benefit and support the mission of the
Hospital in accordance with any stipulations set forth by donors. Funds are to be invested in a prudent
manner consistent with the goals of liquidity, income generation, and capital preservation. The
Hospital's assets are allocated based on percentage ranges within marketable equity securities, fixed
income, and cash and cash equivalents.

The following is a summary of the endowment net asset composition by type of fund at September 30,
2019 and 2018, and the changes therein for the years then ended:

Perpetual

in Nature
Endowment net assets — September 30, 2017 T $613,823
Net investment income =
Endowment net assets — September 30, 2018 613,823
Change in donor intent _50,000
Endowment net assets — September 30, 2019 . $663,823
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THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Hospital to concentration of credit risk consist of
cash, patient accounts receivable and certain investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is

minimized by the Hospital's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term ma

turities issued

by highly rated financial institutions. The Hospital maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which,

at rimes, may cxcced federally insured limits. The Hospital has not experienced any |
accounts and believes it is not exposed 1o any significant risk at September 30, 2019. In

osses in such
vestments are

not concentrated in any corporation or industry. The Hospital grants credit without collateral to its

patients, most of whom are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of

gross patient

accounts receivables from patients and third-party payors was as follows at September 30:

2019 2018
Medicare ‘ 30% 26%
Medicaid : 14 11
Commercial insurance and other 24 36
Patients ‘ 25 21
Blue Cross i _6
100%  100%

Functional Expenses

The Hospital provides health care services. Expenses related to providing these services are as follows

for the year ended September 30, 2019:

General and

Healthcare Administrative Total
Salaries, wages and employee benefils $28,938,257 $ 9,348,717 $38,286,974
Supplies 9,713,941 255,550 9,969,491
Professional fees and purchased services 9,290,910 7,536,089 16,826,999
Healthcare provider tax - 3,276,960 3,276,960
Depreciation and amortization 3,467.470 1,348,461 4 815931
Other operating expenses 974,719 2,692,312 3,667,031
Interest 638.585 248,337 886,922

$33.023.882  $24.706426  $71130.308
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THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Functional Expenses (Continued)

The Hospital provides general healthcare services to residents within its geographic region. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows for the year ended September 30, 201 8:

Professional care of patients , $46,091,731
Dietary 1,063,592
Household and property 3,281,112
Administrative and general services 15,695,799
Hospital tax 3,138,984
Interest 837,448
Depreciation and amortization 3.980416

$74,039.082

The financial statements report certain expense categories that arc attributable to more than one
healthcare service or support function. Therefore, these expenses require an allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. Costs not directly attributable 10 a function are allocated to a functional
region based on a square-footage or uniis-of-service basis.

Commitments and Contingencies
Malpractice Loss Contingencies

The Hospital insures its medical malpractice risks on a claims made basis. At September 30, 2019 and
20138, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management, will
be settled for amounts in excess of insurance coverage nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents
which require loss accrual. The Hospital intends 1o renew coverage on a claims made basis and
anticipates that such coverage will be available.

In accordance with ASU No. 2010-24, Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related Insurance
Recoveries, the Hospital recorded a liability of $3,550,800 and $479,600 related to potential exposure
arising from professional liability losses at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, The Hospital
also recorded a receivable of $3,550,800 and $479,600 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively,
related to estimated recoveries under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential losses. In
addition to the foregoing, at Sepiember 30, 2019 and 2018, the Hospital recorded an estimated liability
of potentially incurred but not reported claims of approximately $836,000 and $717,000, respectively.
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THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2019 and 2018

Related Party Transactions

During the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, the Hospital was billed approximately $8,912,000
and $8,519,000, respectively, in expenses related to affiliation fees, employee health, dental, life and
disability insurance, workers' compensation insurance, and property, auto and directors' and officers'
insurance by MaineHealth. There are no retroactive adjustments to the Hospital for amounts paid to
MaineHealth for the employee health benefits or workers' compensation.

Other expenses related to services provided by Maine Healthcare and member organizations at
September 30 are as follows:

2019 2018
Maine Medical Center 35,205,667 $4,416,555
Maine Medical Partners 334,791 207,502
NorDx © 2405473 1,864,838
Southern Maine Health Care 243,880 201,809
Stephens Memorial Hospital 523,294 343,847

The net amount due to Maine Healthcare and member organizations was as follows at September 30:
/

2019 2018
MaineHealth $1,851,045 §1,732,786
Maine Medical Center 157,839 396,882
Maine Medical Partners _ 96,941 21,655
NorDx 186,066 196,454
Pen Bay Medical Center 83 -
Southern Maine Health Care : 28,700 32,471
Stephens Memonrial Hospital 41,597 26,567
Western Maine Health Care Corporation 5,326 =

$2.367,297 32406813

During the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, the Hospital transferred $292,365 and $270,088,
respectively, to Maine Healthcare.
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THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Amounts Pavable to Affiliated Entities

Amounts payable to affiliates as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 includes the atlocable share of amounts
due to MaineHealth as purchased services under a specific system funding agreement (SFA) related to
the SeHR Project.

2019 2018
Allocabte share of purchased services supported by the
MaineHealth Revenue Bond — Finance Authority of Maine (FAME) $5,536,666 $2,684,543

Less current portion {705516) (181,159}

$4.831,150 $2.503.384

MaineHealth Services financed an information systems project, known as the SeHR (Shared electronic
Health Record) Project, with loans entered into in 2014 and 2017. The SeHR Project will implement a
system wide integrated electronic health record system and financial system and consists of an integrated
suite of technology solutions to support the healthcare delivery for MaineHealth Services members,
providers and the communities MaineHealth serves. [n 20t4, MaineHealth Services borrowed up to
$101,500,000 in both tax exempt and taxable loans. The tax-exempt loan was for up 1o $94,800,000 and
financed through a revenue bond issued by the Finance Authority of Maine (FAME) and purchased by
TD Bank, N.A. The taxable loan was a term loan with TD Bank, N.A. for up to $6,700,000. In 2017,
MaineHealth Services secured additional borrowings of up to $59,200,000 million in both tax exempt
and taxable loans to finance implementation of the SeHR Project with additional subsidiaries and to
complete the project. The 2017 tax-exempt loan was for $55,500,000 and financed through a revenue
bond again issued by FAME and purchased by TD Bank, N.A. The taxable loan was a term loan with
TD Bank, N.A. for up to $3,700,000

The amounts payable represent the Hospital's allocable share of purchased services related to the SeHR
Loan SFA with MaineHealth Services. Per the agreement, amounts payable 1o MaineHealth Services
are reflective of the principal and interest amounts due on obligations incurred by MaineHealth Services,
MaineHealth has agreed to be indirectly responsible for amounts owed by the Hospital. The amount
held in MaineHealth Services' Debt Service Reserve fund for the agreement was $168,099 at
September 30, 2019.

Annual principal maturities of notes payable to affiliates for the next five fiscal years afier September 30,
2019, and the years thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

Years ending Seplember 30; -
2020 $ 705,516

2021 721,424
2022 736,426
2023 751,741
2024 767,374
Thereafter 1,854,185
TFotal notes payable to affiliates $2.336,666
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THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AT NORTH CONWAY, N.H. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FEINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Liquidity and Availability

The Hospital's working capital and cash flows are subject to varability during the year attributable to
changes in volume and cash receipts. The Hospital maintains investments portfolios without donor
restrictions to manage fluctuations in cash flow. '

The following table reflects the Hospital's financial assets for the period ending September 30, 2019,
reduced by amounts not available for general use within one year because of contractual or donor-
imposed restrictions or internal designations. Amounts available include donor-restricted amounts that
are available for general expenditures. Amounts not available include amounts set aside for operating
and other reserves that could be drawn upon if the Board of Trustees approves the action.

Cash and cash equivalents 3 8,727,1 58
Short-term investments 16,318,143
Patient accounts receivable : 9,133,057
Donor restricted ’ 459818

$34.038.176
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Memorial Hospital

MaineHealth

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
MANAGEMENT

Arthur R. Mathisen is President of Memorial Hospital with responsibility for its strategic direction and daily
operations. He began his career in 1992 in the United States Army, earned a Bachelor of Public Management
degree in 1996 from the University of Maine, and a commission as a second lieutenant in the Army as a
Medical Service Corps officer. He served in various leadership positions early in his career to include two
operational positions at Madigan Army Medical Center in Tacoma, Washington. In the following years, he
held leadership positions at Weed Army Community Hospital in Fort Irwin, California; Allgood Memorial
Hospital in Seoul, South Korea; Kirk Army Health Clinic, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland; and Munson
Army Health Center in Fort Leavenworth, Kansas. He also earned his Master’s degree in Health
Administration at Baylor University in Waco, Texas in 2006. After his military retirement in 2013, Mr.
Mathisen joined Bon Secours Medical Group in Suffolk, Virginia serving first as a Director and then as
Executive Director in 2015. Prior to joining Memorial Hospital in 2019, he served as President and CEQ of
Copley Hospital located in Morrisville, Vermont. Mr. Mathisen is a Fellow of the American College of
Healthcare Executives.

Matthew G. Dunn, D.0. serves as Chief Medical Officer of Memorial Hospital, a position he has held since
2018. Dr. Dunn joined Memorial in 2014 providing services in the Emergency Department. In 2017, he began.
his physician leadership roles at Memorial becoming the Medica! Director of Emergency Medicine and Chief
Medical Informatics Officer in 2018, providing ctinical oversight during the Epic software implementation.
Prior to joining Memorial, Dr. Dunn provided services in the Emergency Departments of Albany Medica!
Center and Glens Falls Hospital in New York, where he also served as Associate Medical Director and Chief
Medical Informatics Officer. While in New York, he participated in numerous clinical and advisory
committees, and was a Board member of the Adirondack Regional Community Health Information Exchange
and the Health Information Exchange of New York. Dr. Dunn received his undergraduate degree at Saint
Michael's College in Winooski, Vermont and earned his medical degree from the University of New England in
Biddeford, Maine. He completed his emergency medicine residency at Albany Medical Center,

Diana J. McLaughlin has recently been appointed Chief Financial Officer for Memorial Hospital in March,
2020. Ms. MclLaughlin joined Memorial Hospital in July, 2016 as the Sr. Director of Finance, serving a dual
role for Memorial and Western Maine Health {another MaineHealth member). She was previously the
Controller for Western Maine, joining them in March, 1993. Ms. McLaughlin’s principal responsibitity is the
financial wellbeing of the organization. In addition, she has operational responsibility for Health Information
Services, Patient Billing, Materials Management, Central Registration, and Finance. Prior to working at
Western Maine Health, she held finance positions for 5t. Mary’s Regional Medical Center, Lewiston, ME and
the Veterans Administration in Manchester, NH. Ms. McLaughlin received her 85 from New Hampshire
College in Accounting and Management Advisory Services in 1985. She has been a member of the Healthcare
Financial Management Association {(HFMA) since 1994 becoming a Certified Health Care Financial
Professianal (CHFP) in 2006 and a Fellow of HFMA in 2007. Ms. McLaughlin has held various officer positions
at the Maine State C'hapter of HFMA and Regional level including Regional Executive for Region | in
2005/2006. She has been an active community member for many years, serving on a wide range of boards
and committees for community organizations. She has been a member of the Norway/Paris Kiwanis Club
since 1993.

3073 White Mountain Highway, North Conway, NH 03360 « 603-356-5461 « www.McmorialHospitalNH.org



CONTRACTOR NAME
Memorial Hospital, North Conway NH

Key Personne!

Name | Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Arthur R. Mathisen President N/A $0 $0

Matthew G. Dunn Chief Medical Officer N/A 50 $0

Diana J. McLaughlin | Chief Financial Officer N/A 30 $0




FORM NUMBER P-37 (verszion 12/11/2019)

Subject:_Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing (SS-ZOZI-DPHS-O‘&-HOSPI-] 1)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

1. IDENTIFICATION.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Littleton Hospital Association d/b/a thtleton

1.4 Contractor Address

Number
05-095-090-903010-

(603) 444-9501 19010000

Regional Healthcare 600 Saint Johnsbury Road
‘ | Littleton, NH 03561
1 15 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number: 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

December 1, 2020 $145,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

-(603) 271-9631

.11 C Signature

Date: 03.04-2020

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

"Robert F. Nutter, President & CEQ

smeg o

{2

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Lofi Shibine¥¥e, Comont s5ionmer

By:

the N.H, Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

Catherine Piroa

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

08/17/20

G&C Item number:

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State”), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
(“Contractor’) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described .in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement

shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by .

the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
cffective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement 1o the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the ¢continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price,
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of taw.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose. any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
onentation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees (o permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afier the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is 2 State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Siate.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constituie an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™): '

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the coniract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State

determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe 10 the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after.

any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifieen (15) days afier the date
of termination, a report (“Termination Report”} describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Repont described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited o, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, ali whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be retumed to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.-H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an

. employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its

officets, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes -the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracied by :the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission,of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14,1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or cxcess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H, Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
'14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
tnsurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in bleck 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifics
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers'
Campensation"), :

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N\H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and mainiain,
payment of Workers’ Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shal! furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers’
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shali be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers’
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be govemed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and 0o rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agresment shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof,

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of z conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third partics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary lo any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement wili remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
cxeculed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitules the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect 1o the subject matter

which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire hereof.
Workers’ Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1.  Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows: '

3.1.  Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor of the State of New Hampshire,
issued under the Executive Order 2020-04 and any extensions thereof,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on August 1, 2020. (“Effective Date”).

1.2, Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to one (1) additional year
from.the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and required

"~ governmental approval.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Subparagraph 12.2, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is
amended to add the following language:

12.2 The State acknowledges that the Contractor subcontracts with
ClearChoiceMD at the time of this Agreement as specified in the Memorandum
of Understanding between the Contractor and ClearChoiceMD, which is
attached hereto as Exhibit A-1. The State acknowledges receipt of written
notice from Contractor of its intention to subcontract some of the services to
ClearChoiceMD and the State hereby consents to Contractor subcontracting
some of its services in accordance with the contractual conditions of the
Agreement.

1.4  Paragraph 12, Subparagraph 12.3, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is
amended as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors, other than ClearChoiceMD, are subject to the same
contractual conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is
responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance with those
conditions. The Contractor shall have written agreements with all
subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed and how corrective

~ action shall be managed if the subcontractor's performance is
inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's
performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective action as
necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with a list of
ali subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify the State

of any inadequate subcontractor performance.
Littleton Hospital Association d/b/a
Littleton Regional Healthcare Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing '

EXHIBIT B

1. Statement of Work

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4,

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

Scope of Services

For the purposes of this agreement, any references to days shali mean
calendar days.

The Contractor shall conduct specimen collection and testing for SARS-CoV-2
in an outpatient setting for individuals who reside within the hospital catchment
area or local community, regardless of individuals' prior affiliations with the
hospital.

The Contractor shall conduct specimen collection and testing for patients who
have symptoms of COVID-19 or who are pre-symptomatic or asymptomatic at
the request of:

1.3.1. The individual to be'tested: or

1.3.2. The Department of Health and Human Services (Department) Division
of Public Health Services (DPHS).

The Contractor shall not require an office or telemedicine visit for asymptomatic
patients who have not had potential community close contact with persons
having confirmed or suspected COVID-19 or are concerned about community
exposure/transmission in order for patients to receive COVID-19 testing.

In the event of a significant increase in community transmission of COVID-19,
the Contractor shall not be responsible for meeting significantly increased
levels of testing and may request the Department to provide additional testing
capacity.

The Contractor shall determine the appropriate venue and physical location for
specimen collection, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.6.1.  An existing physical location.

1.6.2. A temporary drive-through location.

16.3. Adrive-up facilty. |

The Contractor shall request a waiver, if necessary, from the Department's
Bureau of Health Facilities Administration for a temporary drive-through
location or drive-up facility.

The Contractor shall determine the appropriate number of days per week and
the duration of time per day to perform community specimen collection for
COVID-19 testing to meet the needs of the hospital catchment area and local
community and communicate the hours of operation to the Department.

The Contractor shall ensure the collection, handling, processing and testing of
specimens comply with guidelines issued by the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC), available at httos://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-

Littleton Hospital Association d/b/a
Littleton Regional Healthcare Exhibit B . Contractor Initials

nCoV/lab/guidelines-clinical-specimens.html and by the laboratory lzdbjcf
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

1.10.

1.11.

1.12.

1.13.

1.15.

1.16.

1.17.

processing specimens.

The Contractor shall ensure patients sign an appropriate consent form, prior to
collection of specimens, authorizing testing at the laboratory and reporting to
the ordering medical provider, the Department, and any other individual or
entity designated to receive the test results.

The Contractor shall identify of any communication access needs to ensure

needed language assistance is provided, which may include, but is not limited
to:

1.11.1. Over-the-phone interpretation of spoken languages.
1.11.2. Video remote interpretation to access American Sign Language.

The Contractor shall ensure communication and language assistance is
provided to individuals, as appropriate and needed, to ensure the validity of any
signed consent by utilizing translated consent forms and/or interpreters.

The Contractor shall ensure all personnel collecting, handling, processing and
transporting specimens are trained to safeguard the confidentiality of the
patient and protected health information (PHI), as defined in the Health
Information Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).

. The Contractor shall ensure the secure and confidential transporting of

specimens to the laboratory.

The Contractor shall ensure the ordering provider for each COVID-19 test is a
licensed medical provider.

The Contractor shall ensure the licensed medical provider ordering COVID-19
tests notifies patients of testing results received from the Iaboratory in a timely
manner. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.16.1. Patients with positive results confirming the diagnosis of COVID-19 are
informed:

1.16.1.1. By telephone or other electronic method.

1.16.1.2. By first-class U.S. mail, if telephone or other electronic
method is unsuccessful '

1.16.2. Patients with negative results are informed of test results in a method
determined by the Contractor.

The Contractor shall utilize existing communication methods to inform the local
community of the availability of outpatient COVID-19 testing, which may
include, but are not limited to:

1.17.1. The hospital's website.
1.17.2. Hospital newsletters.
1.17.3. Social media platforms.

Littleton Hospital Assaciation d/bfa

Littleton Regional Healthcare Exhibit B Contractor Initialsl_ ;c
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

1.18.

1.18.

1.20.

1.21.

1.22.

1.23.

The Contractor shall ensure published information includes how and when
patients can access the services and the location of the specimen collection
site.

The Contractor shall ensure any marketing materials abide by existing
requirements for communication access, including but not limited to:

1.19.1. Vital and significant materials should be made available in additional
languages, as appropriate, and must be translated by quallﬂed
competent translation providers, as follows:

1.19.1.1.  Statewide, only Spanish meets the criteria for translation.

1.19.1.2. Translation is required for languages depending on
‘ factors including the number and proportion of LEP
persons served or likely to seek services in the
Contractor's service areas, and the frequency with which
LEP individuals come into contact with the Contractor's
! programs, activities and services. .

1.19.1.3.  Notification on all materials of the availability of free
communication access and language assistance for any
individuals who may require it.

1.19.1.4. All materials have a phone number to call for further
information, ensuring staff answering that phone number
shall have access to over-the-phone interpretation to
assist callers who need spoken language interpretation.

The Contractor shall provide communication and language assistance at all
points of contact in accessing COVID-19 testing to individuals with
communication access needs, including individuals with limited English
proficiency, or individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss.

The Contractor shall conduct outreach to vulnerable populations and minority
populations in the hospital catchment area or local community, including -
notifying partner organizations who work with these populations about the
availability of COVID-19 testing.

The Contractor shall report both positive and negative test results to the
Division of Public Health Services through the Electronic Laboratory Reporting
(ELR) system, or ensure the laboratory used for processing specimens and
conducting testing reports both positive and negative results to the Division of
Public Health Services through the ELR system.

The Contractor shall report all positive cases of COVID-19 with complete case
information by fax to (603) 271-0545 to the Division of Public Health Services
using the New Hampshire Confidential COVID-19 Case Report Form availabie
at: hitps://www .dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/cdcs/covid19/covid19-reporting-form.pdf.

Littleton Hospital Association d/b/a 4
Littleton Regional Healthcare Exhibit B Contractor Initials -
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

1.24. The Contractor shall notify patients'who are uninsured or do not have full

coverage benefits for COVID-19 testing that New Hampshire Medicaid has
established a COVID-19 Testing Benefit that may pay for testing and diagnosis
of COVID-19 for persons who are not already a Medicaid beneficiary and do
not have full coverage for COVID-19 testing and diagnosis. The Contractor
shall assist patients in completing the application available at

https://nheasy.nh.qov.

2. Exhibits Incorporated/Confidential Data

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

The Contractor shall use and disclose -Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for- Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1998, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit |, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties:

The Department will not be receiving, or have possession of, any patient
medical records generated by the Contractor or any subcontracted medical
provider in the course of providing services under this Agreement, and such
patient records will not be considered data for purposes of paragraph 10 of
Form P-37, General Provisions. '

The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

To the extent the Department shares Confidential Data, the Contractor shall

comply with Exhibit K, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

The Contractor's Use and Respon3|bllitles for Confidential Information are as
follows.

2.5.1. The Contractor agrees to use, disclose, maintain, or transmit
Confidential Data from Providers as required, specifically authorized, or
permitted under the Contract or this Agreement. Further, the Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and
agents, agrees not to use, disclose, maintain, or transmit PHI in any
manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security
Rules. The Contractor shall provide Confidential Information as required
by the Contract, RSA 141-C:7, 141-C:9, RSA 141-C:10, and in a form
required by He-P 301.03 and the “New Hampshire Local Implementation
Guide for Electronic Laboratory Reporting for Communicable Disease
and Lead Test Results Using HL7 2.5.1,” Viersion 4.0 (5/23/2018), found
at: https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/bphsi/documents/elrquide.pdf.

Littteton Hospital Association d/b/a Qll
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9

2.5.2. The Contractor shall transmit Confidential Information to the Division of
Public Health Services by means of a secure file transport protocol
(sFTP) provided by the Department and agreed to by the parties and
approved by the Department's Information Security Officer.

2.5.2.1. Any individual seeking credentials to access the sFTP site shall
sign and return to the Department a “Data Use and
Confidentiality Agreement” (Attachment A) when requesting
sFTP account.

2.5.3. The Contractor shall transmit the Confidential Information to the Division
of Public Health Services as required by statute and this Agreement,
namely:

2.5.3.1. All test results, including but not limited to positive and negative
results, shall be reported electronically via electronic laboratory
reporting procedures, also referred to as “ELR,” as noted
above. - '

2.5.3.2. Test results shall be provided within 24 hours of the test being
completed.

As necessary, the Contractor agrees to comply with any request to correct or
complete the data once transmitted to the Division of Public Health Services.

The Contractor agrees that the data submitted shall be the "minimum
necessary” to carry out the stated use of the data, as defined in the HIPAA
Privacy Rule and in accordance with all applicable confidentiality laws.

The parties agree that this Agreement shall be construed in accordance the
terms of Contract and governed by the laws of the State of New Hampshire.

The Contractor and the Department agree to negotiate an amendment to
this Agreement as needed to address a Contract amendment, or any
changes in policy issues, fiscal issues, information security, and other
specific safeguards required for maintaining confidentiality of the data.

3. Reporting Requirements:

3.1,

3.2

The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department showing that
the public is able to access COVID-19 testing, including, but not limited to:

3.1.1. Number of persons who received COVID-19 testing.

-3.1.2. Number of persons assisted with enrollment in the Medicaid COVID-19

Testing benefit or other assistance program who received COVID-19
testing.

3.1.3. Number of persons for whom race and/or ethnicity is documented.

The Contractor shall ensure race and/or ethnicity demographic identifiers for
the persons who received COVID-19 testing are collected consistently and

Littleton Hospital Association dib/a
Littleton Regional Healthcare Exhibit 8 Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

correctly, in accordance with best practice standards and processes as
provided by the Office of Heath Equity, and entered either manually or
electronically on the hospital or reference laboratory COVID-19 test requisition
forms.

4. Additional Terms
4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

4.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

4.2.1. The Contractor shall submit within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, and comply with, a detailed description of the
communication access and language assistance services they will
provide to ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or
services to persons with limited English proficiency, people who are
deaf or have hearing loss, are blind or have low vision, or who have
speech challenges.

4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
"~ materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, “The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human- Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.” ‘

4.32. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

4.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to: brochures,
resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters and reports.

4.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

4.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Littleton Hospital Association d/b/a
Littleton Regional Healthcare Exhibit B Contractor Initials

$§-2021-DPHS-04-HOSPI-11 - Page 6 of 7 _ Date __ 08-04-2020



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

» EXHIBIT B

4.41. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and

- conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rutes, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by- Iaws and
regulations.

5. Records
5.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income recelved
or collected by the Contractor.

5.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services. )

5.1.4, Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

5.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,

Littleton Hospital Association d/h/a
Littleton Regional Healthcare Exhibit 8 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital-Based COVID-19 Community Testing

EXHIBIT B

excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Litlleton Hospital Association d/b/a
Littleton Regional Healthcare Exhibit B Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
HOSPITAL-BASED COVID-19 COMMUNITY TESTING

. EXHIBIT B -1
Reporting Entity Data Use and Confidentiality Agqreement

By requesting and receiving approval to use confidential data for Department purposes:

| understand that | will have direct and indirect access to confidential information in the course of performing
my work activities.

I agree to protect the confidential nature of all information to which | have access.

| understand that there are state and federal laws and regulations that ensure the confidentiality of an
individual's information.

| understand that there are Department policies and agency procedures with which | am required to comply
related to the protection of individually identifiable information.

| understand that the information extracted from the site shall not be shared outside this Scope of Work or
related signed Memorandum of Understanding andfor Information Exchange Agreement/Data Sharing
Agreement agreed upon.

| understand that my SFTP or any information security credentials (user name and password) should not be
shared with anyone. This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a third
party application.

| will not disclose or make use of the identity, financial or health information of any person or establishment
discovered inadvertently. |- will report such discoveries as soon as feasible to
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov and DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov, but no more than
24 hours after the aforementioned has occurred and that Confidential Data may have been exposed or
compromised. If a suspected or known informaltion security event, Computer Security Incident, Incident or
Breach involves Social Security Administration {SSA) provided data or Internal Revenue Services (IRS)
provided Federal Tax Information (FTD).

I will not imply or state, either in written or oral form, that interpretations based on the data are those of the
original data sources or the State of NH unless the data user and the Department are formally collaborating.

| will acknowledge, in all reports or presentations based on these data, the original source of the data.

| understand how | am expected-to ensure the protection of individually identifiable information. Should
questions arise in the future about how to protect information to which | have access, | will immediately notify
my supervisor.

t understand that | am legally and ethically obligated to maintain the confidentiality of Department client,
patient, and other sensitive information that is protected by information security, privacy or confidentiality
rules and state and federal laws even after | leave the employment of the Department.

I have informed that this signed agreement will be retained on file for future reference.

August 04, 2020

Signature Date
Robert F. Nutter ' President & CEQ
Printed Name Title

Littleton Hospital Association dba -
Littleton Regional Healthcare

Business Name
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New Hz\lmpshlre Department of Health and Human Services
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by the Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for
Prevention and Control of Emerging Infectious Diseases (ELC) cooperative
agreement from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Division of
Prepardness and Emerging Infections, CFDA #93.323, FAIN #NU50CK000522.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

21. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87. ‘

3. This Agreement is for COVID-19 testing and testing-related activities to be
conducted between August 1, 2020 and December 1, 2020,

4. Payment:

4.1, The Department will pay the Contractor the amount listed in box 1.8
Price Limitation included in the General Provisions Form Number P-37,
for providing the services included in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, after
the Effective Date of the Contract.

4.1.1. The Contractor shall submit an expense report in a form
satisfactory to the State every sixty (60) days, which identifies
allowable expenses incurred during the duration of the contract.

4.1.2. Any unspent start-up payment funds will be returned to the
Department within sixty (60) calendar days of contract
expiration date.

4.1.3. Inlieu of hard copies, all expense reports may be assigned an
electronic  signature and must be emailed to
dphscontractbilling@dhhs.nh.gov.

5. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

6.  The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be recouped, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

7. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to
Department-funded programs and services and have records available for
Department review, as requested.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be recouped, in whole or in part, in the event

" Littleton Hospltal Association d/b/a
Littleton Regional Healthcare Exhibit C “ Contractor InHials
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EXHIBIT C

10.

of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting

~ encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the

Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

Audits

10.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

10.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

10.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, Ill-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

10.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulatlons to
submit an annual financial audit.

.10.2.  If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit

- performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the

Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal

year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part

200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

10.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal year.

10.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Littleton Hospital Assoclation d/b/a

Littleton Regional Healthcare Exhibit C Contractor Initials £ -~

§8§-2021-DPHS-04-HOSPI-11 Page 2 of 2 Date

08-04-2020

Rev. 01/08/19
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-680, Title V, Subtitie D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATICN - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections §151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1888 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register {pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shail be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or

termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1, Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2, Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2.  The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3.  Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.24. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
oceurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4.  Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1.  Abide by the terms of the statement; and -

1.4.2.  Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workpface no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initlals
Workplace Requirements
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has designated a central point for the recaipt of such notices. Notice shali include the

identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.8. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or :

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through

implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2, ' The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

August 4, 2020

Date Namf: Robert F. Nutter
Title:'  Ppresident & CEQ

Exhibit D ~ Certification regarding Drug Fres Vendor Inltiats
Workplace Requirements
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 318 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.5.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program cévered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
“Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a8 Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal confract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.8. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civii penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor e:

Date Name:

Title: IRobert F. Nutter

President & CEQ

Exhibit E - Cenrtification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials é :
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OT ESPONS M S

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of .
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification: .

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary pamcmant is providing the
certification set out below. .

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction, If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erronecus by reason of ¢changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” "debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “particlpant,” “person,” "primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
aftached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all sclicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, me||g|ble or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaclion, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and Z

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspsnsion Vendor Initials
And Other Responsibliity Matters
CUMDHHS/$10713 Page 1 of 2 Date _08-04-2020



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS \
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowiedge and belief, that it and its
principals; .

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year perfod preceding this proposal (contract} been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminaily or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I){b}
of this certification; and '

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 46 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

August 4, 2020

Date : Name! Robert F. Nutter
Title:  president & CEO

. Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Vendor Initials ‘@

And Other Responsibility Matters .
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d} which prohibits
recipients of federa! funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, refigion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)} which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 {42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the 'Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regu'ations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Empioyment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures), Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for parinerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations), and Whistieblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Proteclions, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants,.or govemment wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G %
Vendor Initials £
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, {o execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:
August 4, 2020

Date N_ame: Robert F. Nutter
Tite: * president & CEO

Exhibit G
Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federa) grant, contract, Ioan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to, comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: ™

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Vendor Name:

August 4, 2020

Date Name: Robert F, Nutter
Title: President & CEQ

Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Vendeor Initials L
Environmentzl Tobacco Smoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the‘ State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.1 03 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shali have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation® shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. :

f. “Health Care Qperations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. *HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. ‘Individual® shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually dentifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have fhe same meaning as the term “protected health

information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received b
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ?

372014 Exhibit | Contractor Initlals
Heatlth Insurance Portability Act
Business Associale Agreement
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I “Reauired by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shali mean the Secun‘t& Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards

-Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shalf have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

- Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Assaciate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below:; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowiedge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Businez

312014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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(3)

32014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies,

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Actlvitles of B_usiness Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
fimited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification:

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the

Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule, '

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PH! received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be réceiving zl
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI avaitable to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfifl its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate-shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the -
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retumn or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entlty shall promptly notify Business Assaociate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

is neo

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. Segreqgation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
.destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3} |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and canditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |.
Littleton Hospital Association dba

Dopértment of Health and Human Services Littleton Regional Healthcare

The State / Nan?momor

re Of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Robert F. N
LDVI Shibind fte ° uter
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Co MM LSSioney President & CEO
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Autherized Representative
2030 August 4, 2020
Date ! Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT {FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data reiated to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
|.ocation of the entity
Principle place of perfformance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

0. Total compensaticn and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemment; and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

oD AN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor ideniified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 108-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financlal Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:
August 4, 2020
Date %gme' Robert F. Nutter
President & CEQ
Exhibit 4 = Cerification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials J%
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As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

o 069905735
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.8.C.78m{a}, 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contraclor Initials / Z \_i
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar.term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, * Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commaerce. '

3. *Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one parly to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Heaith Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Persenal Information (Pl), Personal Financiai
Information (PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access o a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire’s Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information™ (or “PI*) means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc. ' '

9. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. *Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
' Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. *Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

- I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule,

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
‘pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4, The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 4

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for

any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives

of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1.

Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application’s encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

Encrypted Email. End User rhay only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

Encrypted Web Site. if End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mai! within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed. .

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. |f
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data wil)
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
. connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section V. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidentiai Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program

) " in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media

' sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular sécurity awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum

- ‘match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. - -

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the iInformation Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data- Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

!
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access o it. The safeguards must provide a leve! and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/'vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFlare encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f.  Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
blometric identifiers, etc.).

g- only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

~

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application. .

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DRHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. ldentify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents:

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

V. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that LITTLETON HOSPITAL
ASSOCIATION is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshirc on April 04, 1906. |
further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concemned.

Business ID: 60919
Centificatc Number: 0004924162

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

| hercto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2nd day of June A.D. 2020.

Gon ok

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, ROGER GINGUE, hereby certify that:
(Mame of the elected Cfiicer of the Corporation/LLC; cannoi be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Cfficer of Littleton Hospital Association dba Littleton Regional Mealthcare.
" (Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 12, 2016, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Daie) '

VOTED: That ROBERT F. NUTTER, PRESIDENT & CEO
is du